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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

 

 

 

Attn: The shareholders of the company ONIX ASIGURARI SA 

 

 

Opinion 
 
We have audited the attached Financial Statements of the Company ONIX ASIGURARI S.A. (hereinafter called „The Company”), 

headquartered in Bucharest, Sector 1, 2 Daniel Danielopolu Street, registered with the Trade Registry under no. J40 / 7361 / 2012, 

fiscal code no.: RO 10509908, which includes the balance sheet as at 31 December 2021, the profit and loss statement, the statement 

of changes in equity, the cash flow statement for the year then ended, as well as a summary of the significant accounting policies and 

the explanatory notes. 

 

The financial statements as at 31 December 2021 are as follows: 

Net assets / Total equity: 173.936.003 lei 

Net profit for the period 57.954.753  lei 

 
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present a true and fair view of the Company's financial position as at 31 

December 2021 and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with the International Financial 

Reporting Standards (IFRS), the provisions Rule of the Financial Supervisory Authority (FSA) no. 19 / 2015 on the application 

International Financial Reporting Standards by the companies insurance, insurance – reinsurance and reinsurance, with subsequent 

amendments and completions (hereinafter “Rule ASF 19 / 2015”). 

 
Basis of opinion 
 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (lSA). Our responsibilities under those standards are 

further described in the "Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements" section of our report. We are independent 

of the Company in accordance with the Ethical Code of Professional Accountants issued by the International Ethics Standards Board 

for Accountants (IESBA Code), together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in 

Romania and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit 

evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

 

Key audit matters 

 

The key audit matters are those issues which, based on our professional judgement, proved to be of the greatest importance for conducting 

the audit of the current financial statements. These matters have been addressed in the context of the audit of the financial statements as a 

whole and in forming our opinion on these financial statements, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the 

matter described in the Basis for Opinion section, we were able to determine that the issues described below constitute key audit matters that 

need to be communicated in our report. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Evaluation of the technical reserves 

As at 31.12.2021, the Company's records show gross technical reserves amounting to 142.893.584 lei (On 31.12.2020: 137.251.830 lei) 

See Note 1.4.13 "Accounting policies and methods - General insurance business - Technical reserves"; Note 18 "Technical reserve" 

Key matter Our approach to this key matter during the audit 

As described in Notes 18, the Company recorded as at 31.12.2021 

technical reserves in the amount of 142.893.584 lei, representing 

58,15% of the total debts. The technical reserves cannot be 

accurately assessed, but only estimated in the light of the 

reasoning based on the latest credible information available. The 

estimation of the technical reserves involves significant reasoning 

regarding the uncertainty of future results, mainly the total 

settlement value of the claims reserves, assumptions related to the 

damage rate, frequency of the average claim of damages, the 

average cost per claim, these representing key input data in 

estimating the claims reserves. 

 

The Company creates and maintains the technical reserves in 

accordance with ASF Rule no. 38/2015 regarding the technical 

reserves established for the insurance activity, the method of 

calculating them for the purpose of preparing the annual financial 

statements and the special register of assets covering them (ASF 

Rule no. 38/2015) and IFRS 4 “Insurance contracts” (IFRS 4). 

 

The gross premium reserve, amounting to 122.683.544 lei 

(31.12.2020: 115.221.912 lei), is calculated monthly by summing 

the shares of the gross written premiums related to the unexpired 

periods of the insurance contracts. Their value at the end of the 

financial year represents the part of gross written premiums for 

which the risk is reported in the following financial year. 

 

The gross reserve for RBNS claims to 31.12.2021 is zero lei 

(31.12.2020: 12.417.218 lei), because the company does not 

appear with damages reported in the course of liquidation. 

 

The reserve for IBNR claims, amounting to 9.944.388 lei 

(31.12.2020: 2.756.284 lei), represents the fund set up to settle the 

future obligations of the insurer resulting from the damages 

incurred, but not reported until the reference date of the calculation 

of the reserves. 

 

The reserve of unexpired risks on 31.12.2021 is of 10.265.652 lei 

(31.12.2020: 6.856.416 lei) and is calculated based on the 

estimation of the damages that will occur after the closing of the 

financial year. 

 

As a result of those mentioned above, we deemed that the 

valuation of the technical reserves constituted a key audit matter. 

Our audit procedures included, but were not limited to: 

 

We evaluated the internal methodologies established by the 

Company in accordance with the principles for determining the 

amount of the technical reserves instructed in the ASF Rule no. 

38/2015 and in IFRS 4. 

 

We evaluated and tested (based on a sample) how were the internal 

controls on the process of estimating the value of the technical 

reserves designed and their effectiveness. 

 

 

We involved our actuarial experts to evaluate and test: 

 the assessment of the compliance of the estimation 

methodology used to determine the value of technical reserves 

 the reconciliation of the databases containing details regarding 

the determination of the RBNS and IBNR claims reserve with 

the existing data in the Company's accounting records 

 the assessment based on our professional judgment of 

whether the Company's management estimates were 

adequate 

 evaluation of the IBNR method and estimated value for the 

reference date 31.12.2021 by using the estimated damage rate 

method; 

 the critical assessment of the assumptions used by the 

Company's management to estimate the value of the technical 

reserves by comparing them with our knowledge of the legal 

regulations in force, the Company's specific circumstances and 

by testing the accuracy of the process based on which the 

Company has developed its forecasts. 

 

We assessed whether the Notes to the financial statements disclose 

in an adequate manner the technical reserves, according to the 

relevant financial reporting frameworks. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 



 

Receivables from recovery related to the claims of damages filed 

As at 31.12.2021, the Company's records show receivables from recovery of damage claims and regression in the amount of 14.882.019 

lei (31.12.2020: 16.902.140 lei)  

Note 15 " Other assets "  

Key matter Our approach to this key matter during the audit 

As described in Note 15 to the attached financial statements, the 

gross value on 31.12.2021 of receivables from recovery of damage 

claims is 14.882.019 lei, representing 63,15% of the total gross 

receivable. 

 

We considered this a key matter due significant share of the value 

of the receivable from recovery in total gross receivables and to the 

professional reasoning required in estimating the amounts to be 

recovered  

 

 

 

Our audit procedures included, but were not limited to: 

 

We have reviewed the Company's internal procedures for estimating 

the recoverable amount of receivables from regression or recovery 

and analysed the criteria taken into account by the Company in the 

process of assessing the amounts to be recovered. 

 

We reviewed the management's forecasts regarding the impairment 

of these receivables and we assessed their compliance with the 

applicable accounting regulations.  

 

We reviewed the supporting documentation received from the 

management regarding the calculation of the forecasts, the 

calculation of the degree of recoverability of the claims determined 

for each case, separately, the opinions of the lawyers expressed in 

the litigation files and we followed the evolution of the files for 

damage claims throughout the year. 

 

We have reviewed the counter-guarantees used to reduce exposure 

to impairment risk. 

 

We discussed with the Company's management the methods and 

professional reasoning applied in order to establish the recoverable 

amounts, the status of the litigation files and ongoing criminal cases, 

the Company's intentions to pursue debtors, the expected chances 

of recovery, alternative methods of recovery and the probability of 

coverage of any loss of receivables. 

 

Responsibilities of the Management and of Those in Charge with the Governance for the Financial Statements 
 

The Management of the Company is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in 
accordance with Rule ASF 19 / 2015 and for such internal control as the management determines is necessary to enable the 
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, the management of is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going 
concern, for disclosing, as applicable, matters related to the going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
the management either intends to liquidate the Company or cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
 
The persons in charge with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 
 

 
Auditors' Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 

Our objectives consist in obtaining reasonable assurance so as to ascertain whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 

material misstatement, due to fraud or error, as well as to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 

is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSAs will always detect a material 

misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 

they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the bas s of these financial statements. 

 

 



 

As part of an audit in accordance with lSA, we exercise professional judgment and maintain a professional scepticism throughout the 

audit. We also: 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and 

perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 

basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 

from error, as fraud may involve secrets, forgery, intentional omissions, false statements and avoidance of internal control. 

 

 We understand the internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate to the 

circumstances, but without the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control. 

 

 We assess the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates and 

related disclosures made by management. 

 

 We conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit 

evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on 

the Company s ability to continue as a going concern. lf we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to 

draw attention in our auditors' report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are 

inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors' 

report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether 

the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 

We communicate to those in charge with governance, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and the 

significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identified during our audit. 

 

We also provide those in charge with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 

independence and communicate to them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 

independence, and where applicable, the related safeguards. 

 

Among the issues we have communicated to those charged with governance, we identify those issues that were most important in the 

audit of the current financial statements and are therefore key audit issues. 

 

We describe these issues in our audit report, unless legislation or regulations prevent the public disclosure of that issue or if, in 

extremely rare circumstances, we believe that an issue should not be disclosed in our report because it is expected to it is reasonable 

that the benefits of the public interest outweigh the negative consequences of this communication. 

 

 

Report on other legal and regulatory provisions  
 
We were appointed by contract no. 532 / 05.10.2021, based on the Decision of the Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders of 

30.09.2021, to audit the financial statements of ONIX ASIGURARI S.A. for the financial year ended 31 December 2021. The total 

uninterrupted duration of our commitment is two years. 

 

We confirm that:  

 Our audit opinion is in accordance with the additional report presented to the Board of Directors of the Company, which we issued 

on the same date we issued this report. Also, in conducting our audit, we maintained our independence from the audited entity.  

 We have not provided the Company with prohibited non-audit services, as referred to in Article 5 paragraph (1) of EU Regulation 

No. 537/2014. 

 

 

 
 



 

Other matters 
 

This report of the independent auditor is addressed exclusively to the Company's shareholders as a whole. Our audit was performed 

in order to be able to report to the Company's shareholders those matters that we are bound to report in a financial audit report, and 

not for other purposes. To the extent permitted by the law, we accept and assume no liability other than to the Company and its 

shareholders, as a whole, for our audit, for this report or for the opinion formed. 

 

 

For and on behalf of 3B Expert Audit S.R.L.: 

 

Badiu Dan - Andrei      

registered in the Electronic Public Register of Financial Auditors 

and audit firms with number 4426  

 

For and on behalf of  : 

 

 
 

registered in the Electronic Public Register of Financial Auditors    

and audit firms with number 73  

 

Bucharest, Romania  

10 May 2022 
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ONIX ASIGURARI SA 

 

 STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME   

As at 31 DECEMBER 2021 
(Amounts in Lei) 

 

1  
The notes are an integral part of Financial Statements. 

  
Notes Financial year  

31 December  

2021 

Financial year  

31 December  

2020  
   

Income from Gross Written Premiums  147,620,247 156,910,225 

Changes in premiums reserve  (11,798,237) (61,749,947) 

Insurance premiums ceded in reinsurance  4,356,360 (6,560,767)  
   

Earned premiums 3 140,178,370 88,599,511  
   

Income from investments 4 2,745,585 2,234,782 

Net income/Gains from foreign exchange  2,261,005 1,785,368 

Income from commissions  - 3,644,315 

Other incomes  351,889 21,203  
   

Total incomes  145,536,849 96,285,179  
   

Claims expenses  5 8,000,040 5,064,340 

Claims salvages from reinsurance  235,316 (1,321,525) 

Changes in other reserves  3,409,236 2,573,370 

Acquisition expenses 6 40,813,662 37,590,618 

Administrative expenses 7 13,073,537 12,777,462 

Net Incomes/ (expenses) from value adjustments 8 10,263,269 (1,996,982)  
   

Total expenses  75,795,060 54,687,283  
   

Profit before tax  69,741,789 41,597,896 

Profit tax 9 11,787,036 5,393,209  
   

Net result of the year  57,954,753 36,204,687 

 

Other elements of the comprehensive income:    

Changes in Reevaluation reserve of financial assets 

available for selling 

 - - 

Other positions of the comprehensive income of the 

year, net of deferred tax 
 

     -      - 

    

Comprehensive income of the year  57,954,753 36,204,687 

 

 

 

 

Deputy General Manager,  Financial Director,  

Adriana Cirstei  Marius Stoica 

 

 



ONIX ASIGURARI SA 

 

 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION   
 

31 DECEMBER 2021 
(Amounts in Lei) 

 

The notes are an integral part of Financial Statements. 

2 

 

Note  31 December 

2021 

31 December 

2020 

Assets     

Property, plant, equipment 10  157,630 253,606 

Intangible assets 11  2,291,075 1,496,864 

Deferred acquisition costs 12  15,724,595 12,375,091 

Financial assets measured at fair value 13  150,656,886 126,539,687 

Other financial assets, including insurance receivables  14  185,309,453 62,897,869 

Technical reserves for ceded to reinsurance   - 5,577,891 

Receivable for deferred profit tax 21  287,087 719,498 

Other assets 15  8,818,780 14,198,187 

Cash and cash equivalents 16  56,406,094 141,461,794  

    

Total assets   419,651,600 365,520,487  
    

Equity     

Share capital 17  49,860,616 49,860,616 

Share premiums   704 704 

Previous years’ results   124,074,683 66,119,929 

Total equity   173,936,003 115,981,249  
    

Expenses     

Technical reserves 18  142,893,584 137,251,830 

Insurance contracts 19  93,771,453 97,099,348 

Reinsurance   1,431,605 4,407,451 

Trade and other expenses 20  7,618,955 10,780,609  

    

Total expenses   245,715,597 249,539,238  

    

Total equity and expenses   419,651,600 365,520,487 

 

 

 

 

 

Deputy General Manager,  Financial Director,  

Adriana Cirstei  Marius Stoica 

 

   

 

 

 

 



 

ONIX ASIGURARI SA 

 

 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

31 DECEMBER 2021 
(Amounts in Lei) 

 

The notes are an integral part of Financial Statements. 
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Share capital  Share 

premiums 

 Retained earnings  Total 

         

Figures as at 1 January 2020  49,860,616  704  29,937,445  79,798,765 

Comprehensive income         

Profit  -  -  36,204,687  36,204,687 

Other comprehensive incomes         

Reserves from first IFRS 16 implementation      (22,203)  (22,203) 

Total comprehensive income for the reporting period  -  -  36,182,484  36,182,484 

         
Shareholders’ transactions - equity         

Paid dividends  -  -  -  - 

Total shareholders’ transactions - equity  -  -  -  - 

         
Figures as at 31 December 2020  49,860,616  704  66,119,929  115,981,249 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

        

Figures as at 1 January 2021  49,860,616  704  66,119,929  115,981,249 

Comprehensive income         

Profit  -  -  57,954,753  57,954,753 

Other comprehensive incomes         

Reserves from first IFRS 16 implementation      -  - 

Total comprehensive income for the reporting period  -  -  57,954,753  57,954,753 

         
Shareholders’ transactions - equity         

Paid dividends  -  -  -  - 

Total shareholders’ transactions - equity  -  -  -  - 
         
Figures as at 31 December 2021 

 
 49,860,616  704  124,074,683  173,936,003 



ONIX ASIGURARI SA 

 

 STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS  

31 DECEMBER 2021 
(Amounts in Lei) 

 

The notes are an integral part of Financial Statements. 
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Note 

 

31 December 

2021  

 

 

31 December 

2020 

  
   

Cash flow from operating activities    

Gross result  69,741,790 41,597,896 

Adjustments from non-monetary elements:     

- Depreciation of a tangible fixed assets and intangible assets  701,097 798,234 

- Interest expense  32,260 53,457 

- Interest incomes  (5,207,251) (3,262,259) 

- Changes in technical reserves and deferred acquisition expenses  7,870,141 69,527,514 

- Income from claims salvages  (12,383,327) (7,344,422) 

- Adjustments with impairment of unearned insurance premiums  10,263,269 (1,996,982) 

Adjustments treasury bonds (amortisation acquisition premium)  2,187,196 1,075,599 

Depreciation adjustments  274,470 - 

-     

Operating Profit before changes in working capital  73,479,645 100,449,037 

Changes in working capital    

Changes in insurance receivables  9,236,315 (8,893,362) 

Changes in other assets  7,502,327 (547,497) 

Changes in reinsurance debts  (2,975,846) (627,490) 

Changes in other debts  (6,930,518) 77,852,379 

Profit tax paid  (10,913,657) (5,172,602) 

Net cash from operating activities  69,398,266 163,060,466  
   

Cash flow from investments:    

Purchase of intangible assets  (1,384,553) (24,028) 

Purchase of tangible assets  (14,778) (43,758) 

Acquisition of financial assets kept till maturity  (26,364,324) (48,215,796) 

Decrease in bank over 3 months term- deposits  (131,288,601) (28,739,859) 

Paid interests  (32,260) (53,457) 

Cashed interests  4,637,551 2,047,874 

Net cash for investments   (154,453,966) (75,029,021)  
   

Cash flow financial activities:    

Paid dividends  - - 

Net cash from financing activities  - - 

    

Total cash flow  (85,055,700) 88,031,445  
   

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 

 
  

 
   

Cash and cash equivalents beginning of the period 16 141,461,794 53,430,349 

Cash and cash equivalents end of the period  56,406,094 141,461,794 

Increase/ decrease in cash flow 16 (85,055,700) 88,031,445 



ONIX ASIGURARI SA 

 

 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS as at 

 
31 DECEMBER 2021 
(Amounts in Lei) 

 

The notes are an integral part of Financial Statements. 
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1 GENERAL INFORMATION 

 

Onix Asigurari SA is an insurance undertaking registered in Romania, having its premises in Bucharest, Daniel Danielopolu 

Street, no 2, 3rd floor, district 1 registered under the number J40/7361/2012 at Bucharest Trade Registry, tax number CUI 

10509908, the number RA-031/10.04.2003 from Insurers Registry and Lei Code 213800TOAW5GTMZ1BL19, authorized 

for the following non-life classes of insurance:  

A.1. Accidents, including industrial injury and occupational diseases 

A.3. Land vehicles, other than railway rolling stock; covering all damage or loss of motor vehicles and other vehicles 

A.7. Goods in transit, irrespective of the form of transport; covering all damage or loss of merchandise, baggage, or 

other goods 

A.8. Fire and natural forces, covering all damage or loss of property, other than property included in Classes A3 through 

A7 due to fire, explosion, storm and natural forces, nuclear energy and land subsidence and landslide   

A.9. Other damage or loss of property other than property included in Classes A3 through A7 due to hail, frost, theft, 

and other events not covered by Class 8  

A.10. Motor vehicle liability, the use of motor vehicles operating on the land, including carrier’s liability 

A.13. General Liability, other than those referred to in Classes A10 through A12 

A.14. Credit covering insolvency, in general, export credit, instalment credit, mortgages, agricultural credit 

A.15. Suretyship: direct or indirect 

A.16. Miscellaneous financial loss: unemployment, insufficiency of income- in general, bad weather, loss of benefits, 

continuing general expenses, unforeseen trading expenses, loss of market value, rent and other revenues, other indirect 

trading loss, other non-trading financial loss, other forms of financial loss 

A.18. Assistance for persons who get into difficulties while travelling, while away from their home or their habitual 

residence. 

 

Based on the right of freedom of services, the company is authorized to underwrite insurance policies for classes of 

insurance A14 - Credit insurance, A15 - Suretyship and A16 - Financial loss insurance in all Member States and in Norway 

and for A13-General liability insurance in Austria, Bulgaria, France, Germany, Italy, Portugal, Spain. 

Based on the right of establishment, the company holds the authorization to set up a branch in Italy, in order to carry out 

the insurance activity for classes A13-General liability insurance, A14 - Credit insurance, A15- Guarantees and A16 -Loss 

insurance, its activity being operative starting with December 2019 only for the underwriting of insurance products from 

class A,15 - Suretyship. 

1.1 The basis of the preparation of the financial statements 

The undertaking prepared the financial statements as at 31 December 2020 in accordance with International Financial 

Reporting Standards („IFRS”) adopted by European Union UE and regarding the application of International Financial 

Reporting Standards by the insurance companies, the insurance and reinsurance companies and  the reinsurance 

companies from 30 October 2015 including subsequent amendments and additions and they are dedicated exclusively to 

the readers who are aware of these regulations.  

These financial statements are not presenting the financial position of the company in accordance with the accounting 

regulations and principles as per ASF Norm no. 41/2015 and they are not dedicated to the readers interested in this scope 

(for example the Fiscal Authorities, Trade Registry). For these users, the company has prepared and has presented financial 

statements in accordance with ASF Norm no. 41/2015.  

https://www.proz.com/kudoz/romanian-to-english/finance-general/4080013-cu-modific%C4%83rile-%C5%9Fi-complet%C4%83rile-ulterioare.html#9162109
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(Amounts in Lei) 
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1 GENERAL INFORMATION (CONT.) 

1.1 The basis of preparation of the financial statements (cont.) 

 

These financial statements are exclusively destined to be used by the company, its shareholders and ASF.  In consequence 

it is possible these financial statements not to be adequate for other purposes.  

The financial statements are prepared as per IFRS rules adopted by EU are comprised of the following: 

- Statement of comprehensive income  

- Statement of financial position  

- Statement of changes in equity  

- Statement of cash flows  

- Notes to the financial statements  

Declaration of conformity 

The company’s accounting is kept in Lei (RON) in accordance with Romanian Accounting Standards (RAS). Where 

necessary, the accounts as per RAS were adjusted to harmonize these financial statements in all significant aspects with 

IFRS adopted by EU.  

The most important changes to the RAS financial statements to order to align them with IFRS requirements adopted by 

EU adopted by UE and presented in accordance with those standards are:   

- The grouping of the elements into more comprising categories 

- Adjustments of the assets, liabilities, and equity as per IAS 29 „ Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary 

Economies” 

- Adjustments of the insurance contracts classification as per IFRS 4 – „Insurance contracts” 

- Adjustments of the technical reserves (Best estimation) as per IFRS 4 – „Insurance contracts” 

- Adjustments of receivables and payables regarding the deferred income tax as per IAS 12 – „Income tax” 

- Adjustments of recognition and measurement of the financial instruments as per IAS 39 „ Financial 

Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” 

- Adjustments of recognition and evaluation of leasing contracts as per IFRS 16 „Leasing contracts” 

- The presentation of the requirements as per IFRS adopted by EU 

 

1.2  The basis of evaluation 

These financial statements have been prepared based on historical cost convention with the exceptions mentioned by the 

accounting policies.  

1.3  The principle of continuity 

These financial statements have been prepared based on the principle of continuity, according with the company shall 

continue to operate into the predictable future. To evaluate the applicability of this presumption, the company management 

has analyzed the previsions as regard the company activity.  Based on these analyses, the management has considered that 

the company can continue its activity in the predictable future and according to the principle of continuity, the drawn-up 

of the financial statements is justified.
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(Amounts in Lei) 
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1 GENERAL INFORMATION (CONT.) 

1.4  Significant accounting principles   

The main accounting principles are presented below. 

For the preparation of these financial statements, the company followed the IFRS adopted by EU recognition and evaluation 

principles as per ASF Norm no. 19/2015 including subsequent amendments and additions. 

The drawn-up of the financial statements has imposed to utilize a certain essential accounting estimation and the usage of 

certain reasoning in applying the company’s accounting policies. The amounts are in Lei, rounded to the closest value 

except the cases where it is otherwise mentioned.   

1.4.1  The exchange rate 

(a) Functional and presentation currency 

The financial statements are prepared and presented in Lei (RON), representing the functional currency (the currency of 

the economy where the company has registered its premises). 

Exchange rates used to convert monetary balances denominated in other currencies are: 

Exchange rate: 31 December 2021  31 December 2020 

EUR/ LEI 4.9481  4.8694 

PLN/ LEI 1.0768  1.0676 

GBP/ LEI 5.8994  5.4201 

USD/RON 4.3707  3.9660 

 

(b) Transactions and accounts balances 

The transactions in foreign currencies are converted in Lei by using the National Bank of Romania (NBR) exchange rates 

available for the transaction date.  

The exchange rates gains and losses resulted from the transactions as well as the foreign currencies monetary assets and 

liabilities conversion to the exchange rate of year-end are registered in the profit and loss accounts exception made by cases 

in which they are deferred in other elements of the comprehensive income as risk coverage instruments associated with 

treasury and net investments flows. 

Exchange rate gain and losses are presented in the Statement of the comprehensive income in the position „Net incomes 

from exchange rate “. 

1.4.2 The accounting method for hyperinflation 

AS per IAS 29 („Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies”), an entity’s financial statements for which the 

functional currency is a hyperinflationary economy currency, should be presented in the terms of the current purchasing 

power of the currency updated to the financial statements drawing -up date, so that the non-monetary elements to be 

amended with the general prices index from the acquisition date or tax due-date.  
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1 GENERAL INFORMATION (CONT.) 

1.4  Significant accounting principles (cont.) 

1.4.2 The accounting method for hyperinflation (cont.) 

 

As of 1 January 2004, the functional currency adopted by the Company ceased to be hyperinflationary. 

As per IAS 29 provisions, a national economy is considered hyperinflationary if among other factors the inflation index is 

over 100% during a period of 3 consecutive years.  

The IAS 29 provisions have been applied in drawing-up the financial statements older than 1 January 2004.  

1.4.3 Tangible assets 

Recognition and evaluation of tangible assets  

Tangible assets comprise from the following categories: 

- IT equipment 

- Office furniture and autos 

The tangible assets from a leasing contract are registered in accounting depending on the nature of the leasing contract as 

per adopted by EU.  

The company’s assets are recognized as tangible assets if they fulfill the following conditions: 

- They generate future economic benefits meaning they have the potential to contribute directly or indirectly 

to the company’s cash or cash equivalents inflow 

- Their destination is to be used in the production process or administrative services for a longer than one year 

period 

The tangible assets are initially evaluated at their acquisition costs 

The acquisition cost of tangible assets includes: 

- the purchase price, import taxes and other taxes (except those that can be recovered from the tax authorities) 

- transport, handling, and other expenses by obtaining authorizations and other expenses that can be directly attributable to 

the acquisition of the respective goods 

- the transport expenses are included in the acquisition cost and when the supply is made by third parties, based on the 

invoices issued by them 

- commissions, notary fees, expenses for obtaining authorizations and other non-recoverable expenses, directly attributable 

to the respective goods. 

Depreciation of tangible assets 

The depreciable amount of an asset is systematically allocated over its useful life, which begins when it is available for 

use. Depreciation of an asset ceases at the earliest date between the date when the asset is classified as held for sale in 

accordance with IFRS 5 “Fixed Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations” and the date on which the asset is 

derecognized. Depreciation does not cease when the asset is not used or decommissioned unless it is fully depreciated. 
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1 GENERAL INFORMATION (CONT.) 

1.4 Significant accounting principles (cont.) 

1.4.3 Tangible assets (cont.)  

 

The tangible assets depreciation is registered based on the straight-line method: 

 

Category: 

 

  

Years 

Office equipment and furniture  3-15 

Vehicles  5 

IT equipment  3 

The improvements made in rented spaces are depreciated during the lease period. 

Subsequent improvements related to improvements are capitalized, provided that they extend the life of the asset or lead 

to a significant increase in its ability to generate revenue. 

Maintenance and repair costs are registered as expenses when incurred. 

According to IAS 16 “Property, plant and equipment”, an entity does not recognize in the accounting value of an item of 

property, plant, and equipment the costs of daily maintenance of that item. These costs are recognized in the profit and loss 

account as they incurred. 

Derecognition of tangible assets 

The accounting value of a tangible asset is derecognized at: 

- ceding 

- when no future economic benefit is expected from its use or disposal. 

The gain or loss resulting from the derecognition of a tangible asset item shall be included in the profit and loss account.  

1.4.4 Intangible assets  

Recognition and evaluation 

Intangible assets are regulated by IAS 38 – “Intangible assets”. 

Intangible assets held by the Company are recorded at cost, less accumulated depreciation and adjustment for impairment 

and impairment losses. These are represented by computer applications and licenses. 

The cost of an intangible asset acquired separately consists of the purchase price, including import duties and non-

refundable purchase taxes, less commercial discounts, plus any costs directly attributable to the preparation of the asset for 

use. 

Depreciation 

Depreciation of intangible assets is recorded in the profit and loss account, based on the straight-line method for the 

estimated useful life, and is calculated from the date on which the asset is ready for use. 

The useful life of computer programs is 3-5 years. 
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1 GENERAL INFORMATION (CONT.) 

1.4 Significant accounting principles (cont.) 

1.4.4 Intangible assets (cont.)  

 

According to IAS 38: 

- the useful life of an intangible asset arising from contractual rights or other legal rights may not exceed the duration of 

those rights, but may be shorter, depending on the period in which the company is going to use the asset 

- if the rights are granted for a limited period and can be renewed, the useful life includes the renewal period, based on the 

evidence to justify the renewal by the company, without significant costs. 

1.4.5.  Deferred acquisition costs (DAC) 

The expenses for the acquisition of the insurance policies are represented by the expenses with the commissions due to the 

insurance intermediaries and are registered in the accounting at the moment of underwriting the policies. 

The Company calculates and registers the deferred acquisition expenses using the pro-rata temporis method, similar to the 

calculation of the premium reserve. 

1.4.6  Financial assets and liabilities 

A.  Classification 

The company classifies its financial instruments, according to IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”, in the following categories: 

Financial assets evaluated at amortized cost 

A financial asset is evaluated at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not evaluated at fair value 

through profit or loss: 

- is held in a business model whose objective is to keep assets for the collection of contractual cash inflows; and 

- on certain dates, its contractual conditions generate cash flows that are only payments of the principal and interest related 

to the principal amount due. 

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 

A financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income only if it meets both of the conditions set 

out below and is not designated at fair value through profit or loss: 

- is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash inflows and by selling 

financial assets; and 

- on certain dates, its contractual conditions generate cash flows that represent only payments of the principal and interest 

related to the principal amount due. 

In addition, upon initial recognition of an investment in equity instruments that is not held for trading, the Company may 

irrevocably choose to present subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income. These options apply to 

each instrument, as appropriate. 
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1  GENERAL INFORMATION (CONT.) 

1.4  Significant accounting policies (cont.) 

1.4.6  Financial assets and liabilities (cont.) 

A.  Classification (cont.) 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss All financial assets that are not classified as measured at amortized cost 

or at fair value through other comprehensive income, as described above, will be measured at fair value through profit or 

loss. In addition, on initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate that a financial asset, which otherwise 

meets the requirements to be evaluated at amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, be evaluated 

at fair value through profit or loss, if this eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting discrepancy that would occur if 

it were done otherwise. 

B.  Recognition 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized on the date on which the Company becomes a contractual party 

under the terms of the respective instrument. Financial assets and liabilities are measured at the time of initial recognition 

at fair value. 

C.  Compensation 

Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities and the net result are presented in the statement of financial position only when 

there is a legal right to set-off and if there is an intention to settle them on a net basis or if the asset is intended to do the 

asset and debt settlement simultaneously. 

Incomes and expenses are presented net only when permitted by accounting standards, or for profit and loss resulting from 

a group of similar transactions such as those of the company's trading activity. 

D. Evaluation 

Valuation at amortized cost 

The amortized cost of a financial asset or debt represents the amount at which the financial asset or debt is measured after 

initial recognition, less principal payments, plus or minus accumulated depreciation up to that point using the effective 

interest method, less related to impairment losses. 

Fair value measurement 

The fair value represents the price that would have been received on the sale of an asset or paid to settle a debt in a 

transaction carried out under normal conditions between the participants on the main market, at the valuation date, or in 

the absence of the main market, on the most advantageous market to which the company has access to that date. 

The Company measures the fair value of a financial instrument using the closing prices quoted in an active market for that 

instrument. A financial instrument has an active market if quoted prices are available quickly and regularly for that 

instrument. 

The market price used to determine fair value is the closing price of the market on the last trading day before the valuation 

date. 

In the absence of a price quotation on an active market, the Company uses valuation techniques based on the analysis of 

updated cash flows and other valuation methods commonly used by market participants, using the most of market 

information, based as little as possible on company-specific information. The company uses valuation techniques that 

maximize the use of observable data and minimize the use of unobservable data. 
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1  GENERAL INFORMATION (CONT.) 

1.4  Significant accounting policies (cont.) 

1.4.6  Financial assets and liabilities (cont.) 

D.  Evaluation (cont.) 

Fair value measurement (cont.) 

The value of using a valuation model is adjusted based on a number of factors, as valuation techniques do not reliably take 

into consideration all factors considered by market participants when concluding a transaction. Adjustments are recorded 

to reflect risk patterns, differences in selling and buying quotes, liquidity risks and other factors. 

 

E.  Identifying and evaluating impairment 

Financial assets measured at amortized cost 

The expected credit loss represents the difference between all the contractual cash flows that are due to the company and 

all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive, updated at the initial effective interest rate. 

A financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired as a result of credit risk if one or more events have occurred that 

have a negative impact on the estimated future cash flows of the assets. 

The company evaluates whether the credit risk for a financial asset has increased significantly since the initial recognition 

based on information, available at no cost or unjustified effort, which is an indicator of significant increases in credit risk 

since the initial recognition. 

The company recognizes in profit or loss the amount of changes in credit losses expected over the life of financial assets 

as a gain or loss on impairment. 

The gain or loss on depreciation is determined as the difference between the accounting value of the financial asset and the 

present value of future cash flows using the effective interest rate of the financial asset at the initial time. 

The company recognizes favorable changes in expected credit losses for the asset useful time as an impairment gain, even 

if expected credit losses during the useful time are less than the expected credit losses that were included in the estimated 

cash flows at the initial recognition. 

 

F.  Derecognition 

 

The company derecognizes a financial asset when the rights to receive cash inflows from that financial asset expire, or 

when the company has transferred the rights to receive contractual cash flows related to that financial asset in a transaction 

in which it has significantly transferred all the risks and benefits of ownership. 

 

Any interest in transferred financial assets retained by the company or created for the company is recognized separately as 

an asset or liability. 

 

The company derecognizes a financial debt when the contractual obligations have been concluded or when the contractual 

obligations are canceled or expired.  
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1  GENERAL INFORMATION (CONT.) 

1.4  Significant accounting policies (cont.) 

1.4.6  Financial assets and liabilities (cont.) 

G.  Gains and losses on disposal 

The gain or loss on the disposal of a financial asset or financial liability measured at fair value through profit or loss is 

recognized in current profit or loss. 

Upon derecognition of equity instruments designated in the category of financial assets measured at fair value through 

other comprehensive income, gains or losses representing favorable or unfavorable valuation differences, recognized in 

revaluation reserves, are recognized in other comprehensive income (result carried forward representing surplus - IFRS 9). 

Upon derecognition of financial assets, the result carried forward from the date of transition to IFRS 9 is transferred to a 

carried forward result representing realized surplus. 

A gain or loss on a financial asset that is measured at amortized cost is recognized in current profit or loss when the asset 

is derecognized. 

H.  Other financial assets and liabilities 

Other financial assets and liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment 

losses. 
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1  GENERAL INFORMATION (CONT.) 

1.4 Significant accounting policies (cont.) 

1.4.7 Assets impairment 

 

At the end of each reporting period, the Company assesses whether there is objective evidence of impairment of a financial 

asset or a group of financial assets. A financial asset is impaired and incurs impairment losses if and only if there is objective 

evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a "loss-

making event") and that event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group 

of financial assets, an impact that can be reliably estimated. 

The company assesses whether there is objective evidence of impairment such as a breach of contract terms, for example, 

failure to pay premiums. 

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred for loans and receivables or held-to-maturity 

investments at amortized cost, the loss amount is measured as the difference between the accounting value and the 

recoverable amount of the asset. The accounting value of the asset is reduced by using an impairment adjustment account, 

which impacts the profit or loss account. 

If, at a later period, the recoverable amount of the asset increases and the increase can be objectively related to an event 

occurring after the recognition of impairment (such as an improvement in the recovery period of receivables), the 

previously recognized impairment loss is reversed. through profit or loss account. 

The methodology and estimates used to calculate the recoverable amount of the asset (the estimate of future cash flows) 

are periodically reviewed by the company to reduce the difference between the estimated loss and the actual loss. 

Financial Available-for-sale assets 

When a decrease in the fair value of a financial available-for-sale asset has been recognized directly in other comprehensive 

income and there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, the cumulative loss that was recognized directly in equity 

will be reversed from equity accounts and recognized in the income statement even if the financial asset has not yet been 

derecognized. 

The amount of the accumulated loss that is eliminated from other comprehensive income and recognized in the profit and 

loss account will be the difference between the acquisition cost (net of principal reimbursements and amortization) and the 

current fair value, less any loss from the impairment of that financial asset, previously recognized in the profit and loss 

account. 

If, at a later period, the fair value of an available-for-sale debt instrument increases, and this increase may be objectively 

related to an event that occurred after the previous losses recognition in the profit and loss account, the impairment loss 

must be reversed and the amount recognized in the profit and loss account. 

Impairment of other assets 

Assets that are subject to depreciation are analyzed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances occur 

that indicate that the accounting value is not recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized as the amount by which the 

accounting value of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the highest of an asset's fair value less 

the selling costs and its value in use. 
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1  GENERAL INFORMATION (CONT.) 

1.4 Significant accounting policies (cont.) 

1.4.8 Receivables from insurance  

 

The receivables from the insurance are initially recognized at the value of the premiums receivable related to each insurance 

policy, for the period of validity of the policy. 

For multi-annual insurance contracts, in which the validity period of the insurance contract related to general insurance is 

longer than one year, and the collection of the gross written premium is made in several installments (monthly, quarterly, 

semiannually) established by the insurance conditions. for each insurance year, the receivable from gross written premiums 

represents the value of the insurance premiums receivable related to each year. 

The cashed insurance premiums are registered in the accounting records on their collection date from the client, received 

either directly by the company or indirectly through intermediaries. 

Receivables are presented in the financial statements at their accounting amount, less impairment adjustments for non-

collection risk, if deemed necessary. Impairment adjustments related to direct insurance receivables are estimated at the 

amount considered irrecoverable. The company periodically assesses insurance receivables, at least once per each reporting 

period, and to the extent deemed necessary, constitutes an adjustment for impairment. 

1.4.9  Receivables from salvages and recoveries 

The recoverable amounts arising from the subrogation in the rights of the insured to third parties are prudently estimated 

at their probable collection value and are not deducted from the amount of the claim reserve. 

The company regulates through internal procedures the way of estimating the recovery percentage for the salvages cases 

and of adjusting the recoverable value. 

The company periodically assesses receivables from salvages, at least at each reporting date, and if it deems necessary, 

constitutes an impairment adjustment that reflects the uncollectable risk related to these receivables. 

1.4.10  Share capital 

Ordinary shares are classified as share capital when there is no obligation to transfer cash or other assets. If the company 

acquires the share capital (own shares), the consideration paid, including any additional paid costs directly attributable 

(excluding income taxes), are deducted from the equity attributable to the company's shareholders. If these shares are 

subsequently sold, any payment received is included in the equity attributable to the company’s shareholders. 

1.4.11  Receivables or payables with reinsurers 

The benefits to which the company is entitled from its reinsurance contracts are recognized as reinsurance assets. These 

assets consist of short-term balances from reinsurers, as well as longer-term receivables that depend on estimated claims 

and benefits arising from related reinsurance contracts. 

The amounts recoverable from or due to the reinsurers are evaluated in accordance with the amounts associated with the 

reinsured insurance contracts and in accordance with the terms of each reinsurance contract. Reinsurance liabilities consist 

of premiums paid for reinsurance contracts and are recognized as an expense. 

The amounts receivable and payable from the reinsurance activity with the same entity may be mutually compensated, as 

the payments to be made by both parties are similar in nature and due payable at the same time. 
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1  GENERAL INFORMATION (CONT.) 

1.4 Significant accounting policies (cont.) 

1.4.11  Receivables or payables with reinsurers (cont.) 

Receivables and payables to reinsurers denominated in foreign currency are recorded in the accounts in both lei and foreign 

currency. Exchange rate differences from revaluation are registered in income and expense accounts in a similar manner 

to direct insurance receivables. 

1.4.12  Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on petty cash, bank accounts and bank deposits with an initial maturity of up to 

three months. 

1.4.13  Technical reserves 

a) Unearned premium reserve (UPR) 

The unearned premium reserve is calculated monthly by summing the gross written premiums related to the insurance 

contracts unexpired periods, so that the difference between the figure of gross written premiums and this reserve reflects 

the gross premiums related to the part of the calculation date expired risks. This reserve is individually calculated for each 

insurance contract. 

For insurance contracts concluded in foreign currency, the reserves are registered in lei at the historical exchange rate from 

the date of entry into force of the insurance policy. 

 

b) Reported but not settled loss reserve (RBNS) 

The RBNS loss reserve is registered for the reported claims in instrumentation and liquidating damages and is calculated 

for each insurance contract for which the occurrence of the insured event was notified, starting from the foreseeable claims 

liquidation expenses to be made in the future. The total reserve is represented by the summing up the values of the reserve 

calculated for each claim file. 

The elements considered in the calculation of the RBNS loss reserve are: 

- the estimated value of the indemnity for the notified claim, up to the insured amount 

- the expenses with the adjustment and loss assessment, related to the services provided by third parties 

- the expenses related to claim payment for the services provided by third parties. 

 

In case of indemnities or expenses estimated to be in foreign currency, they are transposed in lei by using the last day of 

the month exchange rate for which the reserve is calculated. 

 

c) Incurred but not reported claims reserve (IBNR) 

The incurred but not reported claims reserve (“IBNR”) is created and adjusted periodically, but at least once at the end of 

the financial year, being a company's estimate based on actuarial calculations for incurred but not reported claims, in 

accordance with the Company's internal rules. 

d) Unexpired risks reserve (URR) 

The unexpired risks reserve is calculated based on the estimation of possible claims occurring after the end of the financial 

year, in case of the expenses related to the estimated future claims exceeds the unearned premiums reserve minus the 

deferred acquisition costs. 
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1  GENERAL INFORMATION (CONT.) 

1.4 Significant accounting policies (cont.) 

1.4.14  Liability Adequacy Test (LAT)  

At the end of each reporting year, tests are performed on the adequacy of the unearned premium reserve to ensure the 

adequacy of the UPR balance minus DAC value. In carrying out these tests, there are used the current best estimates of 

contracts cash flows and of the claims liquidation and administration costs. Any deficit resulting from the test is 

immediately recorded in the profit and loss account by canceling DAC and subsequently, if necessary, by setting up an 

unexpired risks reserve. 

A cancellation of the DAC value, as a result of this test, can no longer be recognized later. 

1.4.15  Liabilities associated with insurance contracts 

In this category it can be found the amounts due to intermediaries, the amounts registered in advance and other due amounts 

in connection with the insurance contracts. 

The amounts due to intermediaries are recorded in the accounting at the time of entry into force of the policy and they are 

settled according to the contractual conditions, under the condition of the insurance premiums to be collected. 

1.4.16  Trade and other payables 

Debts are valued at the nominal value of the amounts to be paid or at the nominal value of other means of settling the 

obligation. 

The company's debts may result from transactions carried out in lei and foreign currency. 

Trade payables and other payables include employee benefits and contributions to the state budget, payables related to 

investment contracts, payables due to suppliers and other payables. 

Employee benefits 

In the normal course of business, the company performs payments to the state budget and social insurance on behalf of its 

employees. 

All company’s employees are members of the pension plan of the Romanian State. These costs are registered in the profit 

and loss account together with the salaries. 

The company does not operate any other pension or post-retirement benefit plans and has no other pension obligations. 
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1  GENERAL INFORMATION (CONT.) 

1.4 Significant accounting policies (cont.) 

1.4.16  Trade and other payables (cont.) 

 

Provisions for risks and expenses 

Provisions are recognized in the statement of financial position when a legal obligation arises for the company or is related 

to a past event and it is likely that in the future it will be necessary to consume some economic resources to extinguish this 

obligation. 

Provisions are reviewed at the end of each period and adjusted to reflect the most appropriate current estimate. The 

differences resulting from the necessary adjustments are recognized in the income statement for the period. 

A provision shall be registered only when: 

- the company has a current obligation generated by a previous event 

- an outflow of resources is likely to be required to meet that obligation 

- a credible estimate of the value of the obligation can be made 

If these conditions are not met, no provision is recognized in the financial statements. 

 

1.4.17  Revenue recognition 

 

1) Income from gross written premiums 

 

The income from gross written premiums includes both collected and receivable premiums related to all insurance contracts 

that enter into force in the financial year and whose risks start during the financial year. If the duration of the insurance 

contract is longer than one year, the gross written premium represents the value of the gross premiums collected and 

receivable corresponding to a calendar year of the insurance contract, except for the insurance contracts stipulating the 

single premium, for which the gross written premium represents the value of the single gross premium related to the 

insurance contract. 

For contracts concluded in foreign currency, the gross written premiums are highlighted in lei at the historical exchange 

rate from the date of entry into force of the insurance policy. 

 

2) Gross written premiums canceled 

 

The canceled written premiums include the premiums related to the canceled insurance contracts on a "case by case" basis, 

based on the client's request. 

 

3) Interest income and expenses 

Interest income and expenses for all interest-bearing financial instruments are recognized in the profit and loss account 

using the effective interest rate method. 

1.4.18  Acquisition expenses 

Acquisition expenses are those expenses incurred by the underwriting process. Acquisition expenses representing 

commissions due to insurance intermediaries are recorded in the accounting at the time of gross written premiums income 

registration. The other acquisition expenses are recorded in the accounting according to the principle of independence of 

the financial year. 
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1  GENERAL INFORMATION (CONT.) 

1.4 Significant accounting policies (cont.) 

1.4.19  Deferred income tax 

 

Deferred income tax is registered using the balance sheet method based on temporary differences between the tax bases of 

assets and liabilities and their accounting amounts from financial statements. However, if deferred income tax arises from 

the initial recognition of an asset or liability related to a transaction that at its occurrence date affects neither accounting 

nor taxable profit or loss, it is not recognized. 

 

Deferred income tax is calculated using the existing tax rates at the end of the reporting period and is estimated to be 

applied when the deferred income tax asset is realized or when the deferred income tax liability is settled. 

 

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legal right to offset current tax assets with current tax 

liabilities and when deferred income tax assets and liabilities are reported to the same tax authority. 

 

Deferred income tax assets are recognized to the extent that a taxable profit is likely to be available in the future based on 

which temporary differences are used. 

 

Temporary differences are those differences between the accounting value of an asset or a liability and its tax base. 

Temporary differences can be: 

 

- taxable temporary differences are those temporary differences that shall result in taxable amounts when determining the 

taxable profit / tax loss of future periods, when the accounting value of the asset or liability is recovered or settled, 

- deductible temporary differences are those temporary differences that shall result in deductible values in determining the 

taxable profit / tax loss of future periods when the accounting value of the asset or liability is recoverable or settled. 

 

1.4.20  Current income tax 

 

The company records the profit tax established in accordance with the accounting and reporting regulations issued by the 

Romanian Ministry of Public Finance. 

 

The outstanding tax is the tax payable on the profit of the period, determined on the basis of the percentages valid at the 

date of the statement of financial position and all adjustments related to the period. 

 

The income tax rate used to calculate the current tax as of 31 December 2021 is 16%.
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1  GENERAL INFORMATION (CONT.) 

1.4.1 Significant accounting policies (cont.) 

14.4. 21 Leasing contracts 

 

The Company applies a unitary recognition and valuation approach to all leasing contracts, except for short-term leases 

and low-value leasing contracts. The company registers the leasing debts related to the leasing payments and the assets 

from the right the assets use. For short-term leasing or for leasing for which the asset has a low value, leasing payments 

are registered as straight-line expenses for the duration of the contract. 

1.4  Estimates and essential accounting reasoning 

The company makes estimates and assumptions with an impact on the reported values of assets and liabilities in the next 

financial year. Estimates and reasoning are continuously evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, 

including expectations regarding reasonable future events in the given situations. 

For the preparation of IFRS financial statements, the company makes estimates and assumptions regarding future 

developments that may have a material effect on the recognition and value of reported assets and liabilities, presentation 

of contingent liabilities at the date of financial statements and reported income and expenses preparation for that period. 

There is a risk that the following items may be adjusted in the following financial year, such as technical provisions, other 

provisions, deferred acquisition expenses, the fair value of financial assets not traded on an active market, value adjustments 

for receivables and other impairments. 

The estimation of the final liability that would result from the claims related to the insurance contracts is the most critical 

accounting estimate of the company. The main assumptions used in making the estimates are: 

Technical reserves 

a) The claims files administration and the evaluation of the losses is done as close as possible to the real value 

(subsequent payment), 

b) The principle of linearity in the calculation of premium reserve - the premium reserve is related to the unexpired 

period of the risk (number of days). 

Value adjustments for receivables and other impairment losses 

a) The insurance activity receivables value adjustments are constituted according to their age, applying the 

adjustment percentages to the amount due according to the seniority of the uncollected receivables, 

b) The salvages receivables value adjustments are evaluated considering the legal period in which the company 

has the right of recovery, the costs occasioned by their recovery as well as the non-recoverable amounts as a result 

of incorrect documentation or due to third party causes. 

The deferred acquisition costs related to the insurance contracts are distributed during the insurance contract term, similar 

to the premium reserve. The estimates are revised at the end of each reporting period. 
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1.  GENERAL INFORMATION (CONT.) 

1.6  Changes in accounting policies and new, revised / amended IFRS 

a) IASB standards and interpretations in force for the financial year ended December 31, 2021 

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous year, except for the following standards, 

amendments to existing standards that were adopted by the Company on January 1, 2021. The impact of applying these 

new and revised IFRS standards has been reflected in the financial statements. 

 

Reform of the interest rate benchmark - Stage two - IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 (Amendments) 

 

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase Two - IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 (Amendments)  

In August 2020, the IASB published the Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase Two - Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, 

IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16, complementing its work to respond to the effects of the IBOR reform. The amendments 

provide temporary exemptions that address the effects on financial reporting when IBOR is replaced by an almost risk-free 

alternative (RFR). 

The amendments provide, in particular, for a practical solution when accounting for changes in the basis for determining 

the contractual cash flows related to financial assets and liabilities, requiring the adjustment of the effective interest rate, 

similar to an update of the market interest rate. The amendments also provide exemptions from the termination of the 

hedging against the risk, including a temporary exemption from the need to separately identify the hedged component when 

an RFR instrument is designated in a hedging ratio of a risk component. 

There are also amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures to enable users of financial statements to 

understand the effects of the IBOR reform on financial instruments and risk management strategy. Although the application 

is retrospective, the entities do not have to make restatements for the previous periods. 

 

IFRS 16 Lease contracts - COVID-19 Lease Granting Concessions (Amendments) 

 

The amendment applies retrospectively for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020. Early application 

is permitted, including in financial statements that have not yet been authorized to be issued by 28 May 2020. The IASB 

amended the standard to ensure that the tenants are exempt from the requirements of IFRS 16 on the treatment of lease 

contracts amendments to granting concessions on rent that appear to be a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic. 

 

The amendment provides a practical solution for tenants to book any change in lease payments resulting from lease 

concessions related to COVID-19 in the same way that they would record the change, according to IFRS 16, if it did not 

represent a change in the lease contract. The practical solution can be applied only if all the following conditions are met: 

 

- The modification of the lease payments has as result in a revised consideration for the lease contract which is substantially 

similar or lower than the consideration for the lease contract immediately prior to the modification. 

 

- Any reduction in lease payments only affects payments initially due on or before 30 June 2021. 

 

- There have been no substantial changes to the other terms and conditions of the lease contract. 

 

Amendments to IFRS 4 "Insurance Contracts" - Extension of the temporary exemption from the application of IFRS 9 

adopted by the EU on 16 December 2020 (the expiry date of the temporary exemption from the application of IFRS 9 

was extended to 1 January 2021 for annual periods beginning with or after 1 January 2023). 
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1.  GENERAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 

1.6  Changes in accounting policies and the adoption of new, revised / amended IFRS (cont.) 

 

b) IASB standards or interpretations that have not entered into force 

 

The standards issued but not yet entered into force on the date of preparation of the company's financial statements, are 

listed below. The company expects this list of issued standards and interpretations to be applicable at a future date. 

 

IAS 1 Presentation of financial statements: classification of debts as current debts or long-term debts (Amendments) 

 

Initially, the changes should have taken effect for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022, early 

application permitted. However, in response to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Council postponed the date of entry into force 

by one year, respectively to 1 January 2023, in order to give companies more time to implement the required classification 

changes. 

The amendments are intended to promote consistency in the application of classification requirements by helping 

companies determine whether, in the statement of financial position, debts and other payment obligations with an uncertain 

settlement date should be classified as current or long-term. The amendments affect the presentation of liabilities in the 

statement of financial position and don’t change either the existing requirements for the measurement or the recognition of 

any asset, liability, income or expense, or the information that entities disclose regarding these elements. The amendments 

also clarify the classification requirements for debts that can be settled by a company that issues own capital (equity).  

In November 2021, the Council published a draft exposition (ED), which clarifies the treatment of debt subject to financial 

commitments to be complied with at a later date than the reporting period. In particular, the Board proposes short-term 

amendments to IAS 1, which effectively repeals the 2020 amendments that required entities to classify as current liabilities 

subject to financial commitments to be met only in the next twelve months following the reporting period if these financial 

commitments are not met at the end of the reporting period. Instead, the proposals would require entities to disclose 

separately all long-term liabilities that are subject to financial commitments that must be met only within twelve months 

of the reporting period. 

Also, if entities fail to meet such future commitments at the end of the reporting period, additional disclosures will be 

required. Proposals shall enter into force for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 and shall be 

applied retrospectively in accordance with IAS 8, while early adoption is permitted. The Council also proposed that the 

date of entry into force of the 2020 amendments be postponed accordingly, so that entities will not be obliged to change 

current practices before the entry into force of the proposed amendments. 

These changes, including the ones in ED, have not yet been adopted by the EU. 

 

IFRS 3 Business Combinations; IAS 16 Property, plant, and equipment; IAS 37 Provisions, contingent liabilities 

and contingent assets, as well as annual improvements 2018-2020 (Amendments) 

 

The amendments are effective for annual periods as of or after 1 January 2022, with prior application permitted. The IASB 

has issued limited scope amendments to the IFRS Standards as follows: 
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1.  GENERAL INFORMATION (CONT.) 

1.6  Changes in accounting policies and the adoption of new, revised / amended IFRS (cont.) 

 

b) IASB standards or interpretations that have not entered into force (cont.) 

 

 

➢ IFRS 3 Business Combinations (amendments) updates a reference in IFRS 3 to the Financial Reporting 

Conceptual Framework without changing the accounting requirements for business combinations. 

 

➢ IAS 16 Property, plant, and equipment (amendments) prohibits a company from deducting from the cost of 

property, plant, and equipment the values from the sales of the items produced while the company prepares the 

asset for use, but a company will recognize such income and expenses in profit or loss account. 

 

➢ IAS 37 Provisions, contingent liabilities, and contingent assets (amendments) specify what are the costs that a 

company includes in determining a contract cost of performing in order to determine if a contract is onerous. 

 

➢ Annual Improvements 2018-2020 bring minor changes IFRS 1 First-time Applying of International Financial 

Reporting Standards, IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, IAS 41 Agriculture and Illustrative Examples Accompanying 

IFRS 16 Leases. 

 

 

IFRS 16 Lease Contracts- Covid 19 Lease concessions deriving from COVID-19 after 30 June 2021 (Amendments) 

 

The amendment applies for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021, and early application is permitted, 

including in financial statements that have not yet been authorized to be issued by the date of the amendment. In March 

2021, the Board amended the terms of the practical solution set out in IFRS 16, which exempts tenants from applying the 

requirements of IFRS 16 on amending leases for leases that occur as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic. 

Following the amendment, the practical solution currently applies to concessions regarding rent for which any reduction 

in lease payments only affects payments initially due on or before 30 June 2022, if the other conditions for the practical 

solution are met. 

 

 

IAS 1 Presentation of financial statements and Practical Statement in IFRS 2 Accounting Policies (Amendment) 

 

The changes are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023, and early application is permitted. The 

amendments provide guidance for the application of materiality reasoning in disclosures regarding accounting policies. In 

particular, the amendments to IAS 1 replace the requirement to present “significant” accounting policies with a requirement 

to disclose “material” accounting policies. Guidance and illustrative examples are also added to the Practical Statement to 

help apply the concept of materiality when reasoning about disclosures about accounting policies. The changes have not 

yet been adopted by the EU. 
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1.  GENERAL INFORMATION (CONT.) 

1.6  Changes in accounting policies and the adoption of new, revised / amended IFRS (cont.) 

 

b) IASB standards or interpretations that have not entered into force (cont.) 

 

 

IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors: Definition of Accounting Estimates 

(Amendments) 

 

Changes take effect for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023, early application is permitted and 

applies to changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting estimates that occur on or after the beginning of that 

period. The amendments introduce a new definition of accounting estimates, defined as monetary amounts in financial 

statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty. The changes also clarify what changes in accounting estimates 

represent and how they differ from changes in accounting policies and the correction of errors. 

The changes have not yet been adopted by the EU. 

 

 

IAS 12 Income taxes: Deferred tax on assets and liabilities arising from a single transaction (Amendments) 

 

The changes are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023, and early application is permitted. In 

May 2021, the Board issued amendments to IAS 12, which reduce the scope of the initial recognition exception in IAS 12 

and specify how companies should register deferred tax for transactions such as leases and decommissioning obligations. 

According to the amendments, the exception regarding the initial recognition does not apply to transactions that, at the 

initial recognition, give rise to equal deductible and taxable temporary differences. It only applies if the recognition of an 

asset and a lease debt (or a decommissioning debt and a decommissioning asset) give rise to non-equal deductible and 

taxable temporary differences. The changes have not yet been adopted by the EU. 

 

 

IFRS 17 "Insurance Contracts" including amendments to IFRS 17 issued by IASB on 25 June 2020 - adopted by the 

EU on 19 November 2021 (applicable for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023),  

 

IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts” which replaces IFRS 4; effective date: annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 

January 2023 

 

The amendments to IFRS 17 mainly consist in: 

• postponement of the application from 01 January 2021 to 01 January 2023  

• the exclusion of the additional scope for credit card contracts and similar contracts that offer insurance coverage, 

for loan contracts that transfer a significant insurance risk 

• clarification on the application of the contractual service margin (SCM) attributable to the service of return on 

investments and services related to investments and modifications of the corresponding presentation 

requirements 

• amendments regarding the recognition by the company that initially recognizes the losses from the onerous 

insurance contracts issued and of a gain from the reinsurance contracts held 

• simplified presentation of insurance contracts in the Statement of financial position, so that the entities present 

the assets and liabilities from the insurance contracts by using the portfolios of insurance contracts than groups 

of insurance contracts 

• the additional transitional exemption for business combinations and the additional transitional exemption for the 

date of application of the risk reduction option and the use of the fair value transition approach 
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2  RISK MANAGEMENT 

 

The main activity of the company consists in the underwriting of insurance policies, respectively assuming the risks for 

the insured parties through the various insurance products offered. One of the main responsibilities of risk management is 

to ensure that the obligations assumed under the insurance policies can be honored at any time. 

 

The company's procedure for identifying, evaluating, monitoring, managing, and reporting significant risks describes how 

is performed the management of the risks, potential threats to the business plan objectives. The main objectives are to 

maintain and protect the financial stability, reputation, and profitability of the company, in order to fulfill its obligations to 

customers, shareholders and other interested persons. 

The measures used to control the risks are represented by the avoidance, reduction, diversification, transfer and acceptance 

of the risks and opportunities. 

Risk management provides the framework for identifying, assessing, monitoring, and controlling risks, in order to maintain 

them at acceptable levels depending on the company's risk appetite and its ability to cover these risks. 

 

Due to the specifics of its activity, the Company is exposed to the following risk categories: 

- Underwriting risk 

- Credit risk 

- Liquidity risk 

- Market risk 

- Operational risk 

- Reputational risk 

- Strategic risk 

 

2.1  Underwriting risk 

 

The underwriting risk represents the risk of recording losses or of unfavorable modification of the obligations value due to 

the adoption of some inadequate hypotheses in the process of pricing and / or constitution of the reserves. 

The company is concerned with reducing exposure to underwriting risk by applying appropriate insurance premium rates 

and diversifying its insurance portfolio, by attracting a portfolio of eligible clients from member countries where it has the 

right to operate in freedom of services, but also by attracting and maintaining those clients who have a low risk profile and 

low loss rate. 

The company manages this risk through its underwriting strategy, through the application of adequate premium rates, 

through a high degree of the insurance premiums collection, through reinsurance agreements. The company selects its 

clients according to certain eligibility criteria. 
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2  RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.) 

2.1  Underwriting risk (cont.) 

 

The underwriting activity is carried out in order to ensure the diversification of the insurance risks from the point of view 

of the type and volume of the risk, of the domain and of the underwriting markets. 

In order to properly manage the underwriting risk, the company assigns part of the assumed risks to the reinsurer. The 

assignment is made by proportional quotas type treaties to reduce the global exposure to risk. 

In addition to the reinsurance program, the company constitutes other types of guarantee for additional coverage, such as: 

mortgages, jointly and severally liability contracts, cash collateral, personal guarantees of the insured parties or third 

parties. 

The company underwrites insurance policies from class A15 - Suretyship, in Romania and in the EU member states in 

which it is authorized based on the freedom of services (FOS) and the right of establishment (FOE) through the Italy 

Branch.  

The types of insurance that the Company underwrites are: 

- Performance Bonds 

- Bid Bonds 

- Advance Payment Bonds 

- Maintenance Bonds 

- Money Retention Bonds 

The gross written premiums in 2021, without cancellations, by types of insurance, compared to 2020 are as follows: 

 2021 2020 

Bid Bonds 4,250,022   1,725,050  

Performance Bonds  140,257,608   153,387,146  

Advance Payment Bonds  2,995,958   1,675,522  

Maintenance Bonds  47,060   234,040  

Money Retention Bonds  69,599   79,060  

Total  148,709,591   157,100,818  

 

Sensitivity analysis 

 

As at 31 December 2021, the company paid claims totaling 10,297,924 lei, resulting in an average amount of paid claim 

of 1,471,132 lei. 

The loss ratio for the financial year 2021, calculated as the ratio between the paid claims amount and the value of gross 

written premiums (minus cancelations) was 6.98%. 

Sensitivity analysis was performed on claims paid amount, keeping the other parameters unchanged. 

If the value of the claims paid would have increased by 10%, the loss rate would increase to 7.67%. 

In the event of the value of the claims paid would have decreased by 10%, the loss rate would have decreased to 6.28%. 
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2  RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.) 

2.2  Financial risk 

 

The company is exposed to the following financial risks: 

 

- Credit risk 

- Liquidity risk 

- Market risk, risk that includes interest rate risk and currency risk 

 

2.2.1  Credit risk 

 

Credit risk represents the risk generated by the fluctuation of the value of incoming cash flows, in case that the 

counterparties do not fulfill their contractual obligations, thus registering a difference between the real value of the losses 

and their estimated value. 

 

The main categories generating credit risks to which the Company is exposed are the following: 

 

a) financial investments, by the un-fulfillment of the contractual obligations by the investment partners 

b) the reinsurance receivables, due to the possible insolvency of the reinsurers, including due to their temporary payment 

incapacity 

c) insurance receivables, through the debts of the policyholders outside the contractual conditions / terms 

 

a) Financial investments 

The company limits its exposure to credit risk generated by financial investments by placing its funds mainly in liquid 

instruments issued by counterparties that have a good credit quality and are subject to constant monitoring. 

The company constantly monitors the quality of the loan and does not expect these counterparties to fail to fulfill their 

contractual obligations. 

The company manages the credit risk related to financial instruments by diversifying its investment portfolio, so as to 

ensure the minimization of potential losses. 
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2  RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.) 

2.2  Financial risk (cont.) 

2.2.1  Credit risk (cont.) 

As at 31 December 2021, according to S&P or Moody's, in terms of rating, the classification of financial assets comprising 

government securities intended to be held till maturity, term deposits, current bank accounts and receivables, including 

receivables from insurance, is as follows: 

 
A BBB BB 

Not- 

evaluated       Total 
      

Financial assets measured at amortized 

cost 
- 150,656,886 - - 150,656,886 

Receivables, including insurance 

receivables 
- 120,690,913 19,873,748 44,744,792 185,309,453 

Cash and cash equivalents - 56,369,029 15,213 21,852 56,406,094 

Total - 177,059,942 19,888,961 44,766,644 241,715,547 

As at 31 December 2020, according to S&P or Moody's, in terms of rating, the classification of financial assets comprising 

government securities intended to be held till maturity, term deposits, current bank accounts and receivables, including 

receivables from insurance, is as follows: 

 
A BBB BB 

Not 

valuated       Total 
      

Financial assets measured at amortized 

cost 
- 126,539,687 - - 126,539,687 

Receivables, including insurance 

receivables 
- 14,611,437 31,718,447 16,567,985 62,897,869 

Cash and cash equivalents - 65,983,001 75,457,577 21,216 141,461,794 

Total - 207,134,125 107,176,024 16,589,201 330,899,350 

The ratings given by the rating agencies to the banks where the company holds cash and deposits, as well as to the entities 

issuing government securities, was as follows: 

  31 December 2021 31 December 2020 

    

Ministry of Public Finance Romania BBB BBB 

Raiffeisen Bank Romania Romania BBB BBB 

Unicredit SpA Italy Italy BBB BBB 

Banca Comerciala Romana Romania BBB BBB 

Credit Agricole Bank Romania Romania n/r BBB 

Unicredit Bank Romania Romania BBB BB 

Garanti Bank Romania Romania BB BB 

Transilvania Bank Romania Romania BB BB 

First Bank Romania Romania n/r n/r 

Intesa SanPaolo Romania Romania BBB BBB 

Intesa SanPaolo Italy Italy BBB BBB 

Piraeus Bank Greece Greece n/r n/r 

BBVA Bank Spain Spain BBB BBB 

BRD - Groupe Société Générale Romania BBB BBB 
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2 RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.) 

2.2  Financial risk (cont.) 

2.2.1  Credit risk (cont.) 

 

b) Reinsurance receivables 

The credit risk related to the reinsurance receivables consists in the risk generated by the reinsurer’s inability to fulfill the 

contractual obligations or its bankruptcy. 

 

c) Insurance receivables 

The credit risk related to insurance receivables is insignificant because the company's underwriting policy is to issue 

policies only after the payment of the insurance premium by the insured and / or its collection directly in the insurer's 

accounts, and the policy portfolio for which the company has approved insurance premium payment in installments is 

reduced and considered risk-free. 

 

Exposure to credit risk 

The maximum exposure to credit risk is equal to the exposure from the statement of financial position at the reporting date, 

as follows: 

 

  

31 December 2021 31 December 2020 

Other financial assets, including 

receivables from insurance 
185,309,453 62,897,869 

Cash and cash equivalents 56,406,094 141,461,794 

Total 241,715,547 204,359,663 
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2  RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.) 

2.2  Financial risk (cont.) 

2.2.1  Credit risk (cont.) 

The company also monitors the exposure to credit risk by analyzing its past receivables, as reflected in the tables below. 

Accounts receivables aging analysis as at 31 December 2021:  

 
Financial assets 

measured at amortized 

cost  

Other financial 

assets, including 

cash receivables  

Cash and cash 

equivalents 

Impaired receivables - - - 

Significant risk - 179,925 - 

Gross value - 179,925      - 

Impairment adjustment - (179,925) - 

Net value -      -      - 

Overdue, unimpaired - - - 

Overdue under 90 days - - - 

Overdue between 90 and 180 

days - 
- - 

Overdue between 180 and 360 

days - 
- - 

Overdue over 360 days - - - 

Gross value - -      - 

Impairment adjustment - - - 

Net value - -      - 

Current, unimpaired  - - - 

No significant risk 150,656,886 185,309,453 56,406,094 

Gross value 150,656,886 185,309,453 56,406,094 

Impairment adjustment - - - 

Net value 150,656,886 185,309,453 56,406,094 

Total gross value 150,656,886 185,309,453 56,406,094 

Total net value 150,656,886 185,309,453 56,406,094 
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2  RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.) 

2.2  Financial risk (cont.) 

2.2.1  Credit risk (cont.) 

Accounts receivables aging analysis as at 31 December 2020: 

 
Financial assets 

measured at amortized 

cost  

Other financial 

assets, including 

cash receivables  

Cash and cash 

equivalents 

Impaired receivables - - - 

Significant risk - 177,063 - 

Gross value - 177,063      - 

Impairment adjustment - (177,063) - 

Net value -      -      - 

Overdue, un-impaired - - - 

Overdue under 90 days - - - 

Overdue between 90 and 180 

days - 
- - 

Overdue between 180 and 360 

days - 
- - 

Overdue over 360 days - 370,846 - 

Gross value - 370,846      - 

Impairment adjustment - - - 

Net value - 370,846      - 

Current, un-impaired  - - - 

No significant risk 126,539,687 62,527,023 141,461,794 

Gross value 126,539,687 62,527,023 141,461,794 

Impairment adjustment - - - 

Net value 126,539,687 62,527,023 141,461,794 

Total gross value 126,539,687 63,074,932 141,461,794 

Total net value 126,539,687 62,897,869 141,461,794 

 

2.2.2. Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk represents the risk of unfulfillment of investments and of other assets, in order to settle the financial 

obligations at their maturity. 

The company invests only in those assets whose risks are easy to identify, to evaluate, to quantify and to manage and which 

participate mainly in the calculation of the solvency capital requirement. 

The company monitors the liquidity risk through the liquidity ratio, calculated according to the regulations in force. 

The asset portfolio is also managed based on the legal requirements in force regarding the assets admitted to cover the 

gross technical reserves and the liquidity requirements in order to ensure the continuation of the activity at any time. 

The company has a reasonable portfolio of highly liquid assets (cash and cash equivalents), as well as a portfolio of 

investments in government bonds and short-term deposits. 

In this respect, the company undertakes adequate measures in order to have sufficient liquid assets, that can be used as a 

means of payment, to honor the short-term payment obligations at any time and with reasonable costs. 
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2  RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.) 

2.2  Financial risk (cont.) 

2.2.2  Liquidity risk (cont.) 

 

The company's assets placement is carried out taking into account the preponderance of the engagements currencies and 

the maturity structure of the debts, in order to ensure a correct diversification and to avoid excessive dependence on any 

type of asset, issuer or group and geographical area, the final scope being to maintain a high degree of security, a 

profitability at least at the market level, ensuring at the same time the available liquidity necessary for the normal and 

continuous activity of the company, based on the principle of business continuity, basic Solvency II principle. 

The company manages the liquidity risk by: 

- constant supervision of the financial situation of the company, by hedging the maturities of assets with the liabilities 

- constant supervision of the company’s liquidity in relation to its financial resources 

- avoiding the concentration of the financial assets portfolio on counterparties 

- monitoring future cash flows in order to ensure liquidity for fulfilling contractual obligations 

- monitoring the liquidity ratio in accordance with the legal provisions in force 

- constant management of company’s assets and liabilities performed in order to identify a possible liquidity risk. 

The liquidity risk to which the company is exposed is low due to the significant share of liquid assets. 
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2  RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.) 

2.2  Financial risk (cont.) 

2.2.2  Liquidity risk (cont.) 

 

The company's assets and liabilities maturities structure based on the residual maturities expected on 31 December 2021 is 

as follows:  

Assets under 1 an 1-5 years 5-10 years 
over 10 

years 

non-

monetary 

assets 

Total 

       

Tangible assets - - - - 157,630 157,630 

Intangible assets - - - - 2,291,075 2,291,075 

Deferred acquisition costs 9,866,402 5,317,668 535,442 5,083 - 15,724,595 

Financial assets at amortized 

cost 
130,584,239 20,072,647 - - - 150,656,886 

Other financial assets, 

including insurance assets  
185,309,453 - - - - 185,309,453 

Technical reserves for 

amounts ceded in reinsurance  - - - - - - 

Other assets 8,584,791 233,989 - - - 8,818,780 

Deferred income tax 

receivables 
- - - - 287,087 287,087 

Cash and cash equivalents 56,406,094 - - - - 56,406,094 

Total assets 390,750,979 25,624,304 535,442 5,083 2,735,792 419,651,600  

      
Liabilities 

      
Debts associated with 

insurance contracts - technical 

reserves 

96,003,786 43,489,202 3,377,164 23,432 - 142,893,584 

Debts from insurance 

contracts 
241,350 93,530,103 - - - 93,771,453 

Reinsurance debts 1,431,605 - - - - 1,431,605 

Trade debts and other 

payables 
6,810,410 808,545 - - - 7,618,955 

 

Total liabilities 
286,263,828 137,827,850 3,377,164 23,412 - 245,715,597 

 

      
 

Liquidity risk 286,263,828 (112,203,546) (2,841,722) (18,349) 2,735,792 173,936,003 
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2  RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.) 

2.2  Financial risk (cont.) 

2.2.2  Liquidity risk (cont.) 

 

The company's assets and liabilities maturities structure based on the residual maturities expected on 31 December 2020 is 

as follows:  

Assets under 1 an 1-5 years 5-10 years 
over 10 

years 

non-

monetary 

assets 

Total 

       

Tangible assets - - - - 253,606 253,606 

Intangible assets - - - - 1,496,864 1,496,864 

Deferred acquisition costs 7,962,968 3,988,230 418,578 5,315 - 12,375,091 

Financial assets at amortized 

cost 
106,650,379 19,889,308 - - - 126,539,687 

Other financial assets, 

including insurance assets  
62,897,869 - - - - 62,897,869 

Technical reserves for 

amounts ceded in reinsurance  5,577,891 - - - - 5,577,891 

Other assets 1,669,599 12,528,588 - - - 14,198,187 

Deferred income tax 

receivables 
- - - - 719,498 719,498 

Cash and cash equivalents 141,461,794 - - - - 141,461,794 

Total assets 326,220,500 36,406,126 418,578 5,315 2,469,968 365,520,487  

      
Liabilities 

      
Debts associated with 

insurance contracts - technical 

reserves 

87,875,064 46,394,799 2,958,230 23,737 - 137,251,830 

Debts from insurance 

contracts 
1,634,432 95,464,916 - - - 97,099,348 

Reinsurance debts 4,407,451 - - - - 4,407,451 

Trade debts and other 

payables 
10,036,577 744,032 - - - 10,780,609 

 

Total liabilities 
103,953,524 142,603,747 2,958,230 23,737 - 249,539,238 

 

      
 

Liquidity risk 222,266,976 (106,197,621) (2,539,652) (18,422) 2,469,968 115,981,249 
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2  RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.) 

2.2  Financial risk (cont.) 

2.2.2  Liquidity risk (cont.) 

 

The future contractual cash flows per maturity as at 31 December 2021 are as follows: 

 

 

Assets 
under 1 year 1-5 years 5-10 years 

over 10 

years 
Total 

Financial assets at amortized cost * 
131,798,880 19,990,324 - - 151,789,204 

Other financial assets, including 

receivables from insurance 
185,309,453 - - - 185,309,453 

Technical reserves for amounts ceded 

in reinsurance 
- - - - - 

Other assets 8,584,791 233,989 - - 8,818,780 

Deferred income tax receivables 
287,087 - - - 287,087 

Cash and cash equivalents 56,406,094 - - - 56,406,094 

Total assets 382,386,305 20,224,313 - - 402,610,618  

    
 

Liabilities 
    

 

Debts associated with insurance 

contracts - technical reserves 96,003,786 43,489,202 3,377,164 23,432 142,893,584 

Debts from insurance contracts 
241,350 93,530,103 - - 93,771,453 

Reinsurance debts 1,431,605 - - - 1,431,605 

Trade and other payables 
6,810,410 808,545 - - 7,618,955 

 

Total liabilities 
104,487,151 137,827,850 3,377,164 23,432 245,715,697 

 

    
 

Liquidity risk 277,899,154 (117,603,537) (3,377,164) (23,432) 156,895,021 

* The value of acquisition cost (clean price) inclusive the attached interest 
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2  RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.) 

2.2  Financial risk (cont.) 

2.2.2  Liquidity risk (cont.) 

The future contractual cash flows per maturity as at 31 December 2020 are as follows: 

 

Assets under 1 year 1-5 years 5-10 years 
over 10 

years 
Total 

Financial assets at amortized cost * 
107,679,783 19,690,716 - - 127,370,499 

Other financial assets, including 

receivables from insurance 
62,897,869 - - - 62,897,869 

Technical reserves for amounts ceded 

in reinsurance 
5,577,891 - - - 5,577,891 

Other assets 1,669,599 12,528,588 - - 14,198,187 

Deferred income tax receivables 
719,498 - - - 719,498 

Cash and cash equivalents 141,461,794 - - - 141,461,794 

Total assets 320,006,434 32,219,304 - - 352,225,738  

    
 

Liabilities 
    

 

Debts associated with insurance 

contracts - technical reserves 87,875,064 46,394,799 2,958,230 23,737 137,251,830 

Debts from insurance contracts 
1,634,432 95,464,916 - - 97,099,348 

Reinsurance debts 4,407,451 - - - 4,407,451 

Trade and other payables 
10,036,577 744,032 - - 10,780,609 

 

Total liabilities 
103,953,524 142,603,747 2,958,230 23,737 249,539,238 

 

    
 

Liquidity risk 216,052,910 (110,384,443) (2,958,230) (23,737) 102,686,500 

* The value of acquisition cost (clean price) inclusive the attached interest 

 

2.2.3.  Market risk 

The market risk is the risk of incurring losses or an unfavorable change in the financial situation, which directly or indirectly 

results from fluctuations in the level and volatility of assets, liabilities, and financial instruments market prices. 

The main categories of market risk to which the Company is exposed are the following: 

- Currency risk represents the risk of recording financial losses due to the deviation of the real value of the exchange rates 

from the estimated value. In order to avoid losses arising from movements with a negative impact on the exchange rate, 

the Company applies a policy of correlating foreign exchange assets and liabilities 

- Interest rate risk represents the risk of registering some financial losses due to the deviation of the real value of the interest 

rate from the estimated value 
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2  RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.) 

2.2  Financial risk (cont.) 

2.2.3  Market risk (cont.) 

In order to reduce these market risks, the company considers at least the following measures: 

- congruence of assets with obligations 

- follow-up of the exchange rates evolution in which the investments are made and the reserves are calculated 

- follow-up of the collection of foreign currency receivables according to the contractual clauses 

Exposure to currency risk 

The assets and liabilities of the Company are expressed mainly in foreign currency. The company is exposed to currency 

risk because of the difference between assets and liabilities, on each currency, the Company constantly monitoring the 

correlation of assets and liabilities in foreign currency. 

The assets and liabilities of the Company as at 31 December 2021 are presented in the following table: 

 

Assets RON EUR PLN USD GBP Total 

 
  

   
 

tangible fixed assets 157,630 - - - - 157,630 

intangible assets 2,291,075 - - - - 2,291,075 

deferred acquisition costs 
- 12,801,850 2,922,745 - - 15,724,595 

financial assets at amortized 

cost 130,584,239 20,072,647 - - - 150,656,886 

other financial assets, 

including insurance 

receivables 

- 185,309,453 - - - 185,309,453 

technical reserves for 

amounts ceded in reinsurance  
- - - - - - 

other assets 47,399 8,771,381 - - - 8,818,780 

carried forward income tax 

receivable 
287,087 - - - - 287,087 

cash and cash equivalents 4,543,989 35,764,446 16,095,743 - 1,916 56,406,094 

Total assets 137,911,419 262,719,777 19,018,488 - 1,916 419,651,600        
Liabilities       

technical reserves 20,210,041 94,560,044 28,123,499 - - 142,893,584 

debts associated with 

insurance contracts - 93,771,453 - - - 93,771,453 

reinsurance debts - 1,431,605 - - - 1,431,605 

trade and other payables 7,510,439 108,516 - - - 7,618,955 

Total liabilities 27,720,480 189,871,618 28,123,499 -      - 245,715,597 

       

Net currency position 110,190,939 72,848,159 (9,105,011) - 1,916 173,936,003 
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2  RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.) 

2.2  Financial risk (cont.) 

2.2.3  Market risk (cont.) 

 

The assets and liabilities of the Company as at 31 December 2020 are presented in the following table: 

 

Assets RON EUR PLN USD GBP Total 

   
   

 
tangible fixed assets 253,606 - - - - 253,606 

intangible assets 1,496,864 - - - - 1,496,864 

deferred acquisition costs 
- 10,018,659 2,356,432 - - 12,375,091 

financial assets at amortized 

cost 106,650,379 19,889308 - - - 126,539,687 

other financial assets, 

including insurance 

receivables 

- 54,014,088 8,883,781 - - 62,897,869 

technical reserves for 

amounts ceded in reinsurance  
- 5,577,891 - - - 5,577,891 

other assets 746,554 13,449,888 1,745 - - 14,198,187 

carried forward income tax 

receivable 
719,498 - - - - 719,498 

cash and cash equivalents 409,021 141,013,349 17,617 20,046 1,761 141,461,794 

Total assets 110,275,922 243,963,183 11,259,575 20,046 1,761 365,520,487        
Liabilities       

technical reserves 9,612,700 103,862,091 23,777,039 - - 137,251,830 

debts associated with 

insurance contracts - 96,189,093 910,255 - - 97,099,348 

reinsurance debts - 4,407,451 - - - 4,407,451 

trade and other payables 8,648,052 2,132,557 - - - 10,780,609 

Total liabilities 18,260,752 206,591,192 24,687,294 -      - 249,539,238  
      

Net currency position 92,015,170 37,371,991 (13,427,719) 20,046 1,761 115,981,249 
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2  RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.) 

2.2  Financial risk (cont.) 

2.2.3  Market risk (cont.) 

Currency risk exposure - sensitivity analysis 

The main currency risk comes from the EUR exposure, the company’s assets in EUR representing approximately 67% of 

the total assets, and its obligations in EUR 77% of the total obligations. 

An analysis of the sensitivity on foreign exchange risk, assuming the depreciation of RON against EUR by 10% and 

considering that all other variables remain constant, leads to an increase in the Company's result by 7.284.816 lei, according 

to those presented below: 

 31 December 2021 

10% RON depreciation 

towards EUR Impact 

    

EUR / LEI exchange rate 4.9481 5.4429 0.4948 

Total Euro assets 262,719,777 288,991,755 26,271,978 

Total Euro debt 189,871,618 208,858,780 18,987,152 

Net currency position 72,848,159 80,132,975 7,284,816 

 

 

Exposure to interest rate risk 

The company does not hold variable interest rate financial instruments. The company has invested part of its assets in term 

deposits held with banks and in government securities intended to be held until maturity. Due to the fact that these 

investments are short and medium term, the exposure to interest rate risk is reduced. 
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2  RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.) 

2.3  Other risks 

2.3.1  Operational risk 

Operational risk is the risk of losses due to inadequate internal processes or malfunctions, by its own staff or IT systems, 

or as a result of external events. The operational risk is inherent in all the company's activities. 

The company's operational risk management procedures consider each type of event that may generate significant risks 

and the manner in which they occur, in order to eliminate or reduce financial or reputational losses. 

2.3.2  Reputational risk 

Reputational risk is defined as the risk of losses as a result of deterioration of the company's reputation, its image or a 

negative perception from policyholders, shareholders, or authorities. 

The reputational risk source may come from but not limited to the following: management decisions, products, activities, 

or actions of the company's employees. 

Reputational risk can be: 

- direct, when it is caused by any company’s behaviors that could have a negative impact on the interested parties’ 

perception on the company 

- indirect, when the degradation of the reputation is caused by a risk from another major category of risks (operational, 

strategic, liquidity, credit risk, market risk) 

In order to carefully monitor the company’s reputational risk at level, the following elements are considered: the number 

of negative articles published in the media, the number of appearances, the number of complaints received from clients/ 

beneficiaries. 

2.3.3  Strategic risk 

Strategic risk is the risk of incurring losses or an unfavorable change in the financial situation due to strategic decisions 

taken by management. 
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2  MANAGEMENTUL RISCURILOR (CONTINUARE) 

2.4    Capital management 

 

The impact of the Solvency Capital Requirement (SCR) and the Minimum Capital Requirement (MCR) on the value of 

own funds is assessed periodically, in accordance with the requirements of the Solvency II regime. 

For the determination and calculation of the Solvency Capital Requirement (SCR), the company uses the standard formula. 

As at 31 December 2021, compared to 31 December 2020, the values of SCR, MCR and eligible own funds, determined 

according to the Solvency II regime, are as follows: 

 

 31 December 

 2021 

31 December 

 2020 

   

SCR 111,086,257               74,997,189 

MCR 27,771,564               22,988,828 

Own funds 219,132,299             182,176,739 

Ratio of Eligible own funds to SCR 197% 243% 

Ratio of Eligible own funds to MCR 789% 792% 

 

Detailed information on the valuation principles used and the calculation of capital adequacy indicators is presented in 

the "Solvency and Financial Statement Report (SFCR) 2021", published on the company's website (www.onix.eu.com). 
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3. INCOMES FROM EARNED PREMIUMS 

 

 
 

2021 2020 

Gross written premiums  147,620,247 156,910,225 

Variation of the unearned premiums reserve (11,798,237) (61,033,371) 

Premiums ceded in reinsurance 4,356,360 (6,560,767) 

Variation of the reserve for premiums ceded in reinsurance  - (716,576) 

   

Net earned reinsurance premiums  140,178,370 88,599,511 

The income from gross earned premium for the year 2021, is presented in the table below, by insurance product: 

 

Gross written 

premiums 

Variation of 

premiums 

reserve (gross) 

Gross earned 

premiums 

    

Performance bonds 140,257,608 8,812,172 131,445,436 

Bid bonds 4,250,022 137,646 4,112,376 

Advance Payment Bonds 2,995,958 (683,549) 3,679,507 

Maintenance bonds 47,060 (834,753) 881,813 

Money Retention Bonds 69,599 30,115 39,484 

    

Total 147,620,247 7,461,631 140,158,616 

 

The income from gross earned premium for the year 2020, is presented in the table below, by insurance product: 

 

Gross written 

premiums 

Variation of 

premiums 

reserve (gross) 

Gross earned 

premiums 

    

Performance bonds 153,232,961 65,159,545 88,073,416 

Bid bonds 1,688,642 131,690 1,556,952 

Advance Payment Bonds 1,675,522 (3,521,313) 5,196,835 

Maintenance bonds 234,040 (804,560) 1,038,600 

Money Retention Bonds 79,060 68,009 11,051 

    

Total 156,910,225 61,033,371 95,876,854 

 

 

4. INCOME FROM INVESTMENTS 

 2021 2020 

   

   

Term deposits interests   563,134 761,001 

Treasury bonds interests 2,182,451 1,473,781 

   

Total 2,745,585  2,234,782  
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5. CLAIMS EXPENSES 

 

During 2021, the company paid claims in the gross amount of 11,303,893 lei, compared to 6,318,822 lei in 2020. 

 

Claims expenses 2021 2020 

   

Paid claims  11,303,893 6,318,822 

Variation of loss reserve (RBNS) 12,417,218 7,365,474 

Variation of incurred but not reported claims (IBNR) 7,188,104 1,757,981 

Incomes from salvages equivalent to paid claims (10,458,066) (3,033,515) 

Income from recoveries equivalent to claims in RBNS (12,383,327) (7,344,422) 

   

Total 8,000,040 5,064,340 

 

6, ACQUISITIONS COSTS 

 2021 2020 

   

DAC variation (3,349,505) (2,883,874) 

Acquisitions costs 44,163,167 40,474,492 

   

Total 40,813,662 37,590,618 

 

7. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 

 2021 2020 

Salaries and contributions   

Operating fee, guarantee fund, other taxes 5,965,576 5,067,274 

Depreciation of tangible and intangible assets 2,361,499 2,198,445 

Services 701,097 798,234 

Other administrative expenses 2,670,180 3,150,962 

Salaries and contributions 1,375,185 1,562,547 

   

Total 13,073,537 12,777,462 
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8. NET EXPENSES WITH ASSET VALUE ADJUSTMENTS 

 

 2021 2020 

   

Expenses with uncollected premiums receivable value 

adjustments 

2,862 3,276 

Expenses /Incomes from adjustments to value receivables from 

claims recoveries in reserve 

10,260,407 

 

(2,061,608) 

Expenditure on provisions for leave not taken - 61,350 

Total 10,263,269 (1,996,982) 

 

9, INCOME TAX EXPENSE 

a) Income tax expense 

 2021 2020 

   

Current income tax expense 11,354,625 5,581,369 

Deferred income tax expense / income 432,411 (188,160) 

   

Total 11,787,036 5,393,209 

   

 

 

b) Reconciling the accounting result with the income tax expense 

 

 

Fiscal base 

2021 

Effect 

(16%) 

Fiscal base 

 2020 

Effect 

(16%) 

     
Profit before taxation 69,741,789  11,158,687 42,024,724  6,723,956 

Non-taxable income - - (2,172,984) (347,677) 

Non-deductible expenses 9,474,550  1,515,928  1,210,513  193,682  

Legal reserve and sponsorships (2,676,986) (428,318) (2,123,431) (339,749) 

Temporary differences with fiscal impact 2,379,619  380,739  1,935,575  309,692  

Taxable profit 78,918,972  12,627,036 40,874,397  6,539,904 

Loss from previous years - - - - 

Taxable profit after fiscal loss 78,918,972  - 40,874,397  - 

Profit tax before sponsorships (16%)  12,627,036  6,539,904 

Sponsorships  (840,000)  (719,867) 

Profit tax bonus  -  (426,828) 

Profit tax   11,787,036  5,393,209 

 

 



ONIX ASIGURARI SA 

 

 NOTES as at 

 

 
31 DECEMBER 2021 
(Amounts in Lei) 

 

The notes are an integral part of Financial Statements. 

45 

10. TANGIBLE ASSETS 

  

IT equipment 

Office furniture and 

vehicles Total 

Gross value    
Balance as at 1 January 2019 87,169 1,031,096 1,118,265 

Purchases 22,967 20,802 43,769 

Outputs 22,880 8,603 31,483 

Balance as at 31 December 2019 87,256 1,043,295 1,130,551  
   

Balance as at 1 January 2021 87,256 1,043,295 1,130,551 

Purchases 11,746 3,041 14,787 

Outputs 18 - 18 

Balance as at 31 December 2021 98,984 1,046,336 1,145,320  
   

Depreciation    

Balance as at 1 January 2019 66,304 733,180 799,484 

Purchases 11,161 97,773 108,934 

Outputs 22,870 8,603 31,473 

Balance as at 31 December 2019 54,595 822,350 876,945  
   

Balance as at 1 January 2021 54,595 822,350 876,945 

Purchases 13,757 96,997 110,754 

Outputs 9 - 9 

Balance as at 31 December 2021 68,343 919,347 987,690  
   

Net value as at 1 January 2019 20,865 297,916 318,781  
   

Net value as at 31 December 2019 32,661 220,945 253,606  
   

Net value as at 31 December 2021 30,641 126,989 157,630 
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11.  INTANGIBLE ASSETS  

Other intangible 

assets 

Use of the assets 

within operate 

leasing  Total 

Gross value    
Balance as at 1 January 2020 746,161 2,311,250 3,057,411 

Purchases 9,965 73,655 83,620 

Outputs 87,197 - 87,197 

Balance as at 31 December 2020 668,929 2,384,905 3,053,834  
   

Balance as at 1 January 2021 668,929 2,384,905 3,053,834 

Purchases 5,897 1,380,564 1,386,461 

Outputs 719 - 719 

Balance as at 31 December 2021 674,107 3,765,469 4,439,576  
   

Depreciation    

Balance as at 1 January 2020 424,525 470,749 895,274 

Purchases 54,229 635,522 689,751 

Outputs 28,055 - 28,055 

Balance as at 31 December 2020 450,699 1,106,271 1,556,970  
   

Balance as at 1 January 2021 450,699 1,106,271 1,556,970 

Purchases 57,138 534,603 591,741 

Outputs 210 - 210 

Balance as at 31 December 2021 507,627 1,640,874 2,148,501  
   

Net value as at 1 January 2020 321,636 1,840,501 2,162,137  
   

Net value as at 31 December 2020 218,230 1,278,634 1,496,864  
   

Net value as at 31 December 2021 166,480 2,212,595 2,291,075 

 

Intangible assets including software licenses for company's business. 

 

 

12. REPORTED AQUISITION EXPENSES (DAC) 

 

 2021 2020 

   

Balance as at 1 January 12,375,091 9,491,218 

Deferred acquisition costs 11,981,093 12,348,181 

Depreciation of deferred acquisition costs (8,631,589) (9,464,308) 

   

Balance as at 31 December 15,724,595 12,375,091 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



ONIX ASIGURARI SA 

 

 NOTES as at 

 

 
31 DECEMBER 2021 
(Amounts in Lei) 

 

The notes are an integral part of Financial Statements. 

47  

 

13. FINANCIAL ASSETS EVALUATED AT AMORTISED COST 

 

 

31 December 

 2021 

31 December 

 2020 

   

Balance as at 1 January 126,539,687 78,181,805 

Acquisitions 167,915,113 116,137,688 

Sales/Maturity (147,327,400) (71,378,606) 

Amortized cost adjustment 525,548 528,181 

Accumulated interest 3,278,408 3,070,619 

Fair value adjustment (274,470) - 

   

Balance as at 31 December 150,656,886 126,539,687 

 

 

The market value of the treasury bonds held by the company until maturity was 150,656,886 lei la 31 December 2021. 

From the point of view of determining the market value, all treasury bonds held to maturity are classified as Level 2 

instruments. The determination of market values for treasury bonds in lei was made based on values published by Reuters 

or Bloomberg. 

 

14. ALTE ACTIVE FINANCIARE, INCLUSIV CREANTE DIN ASIGURARI 

 

 

31 December 

 2021 

31 December 

 2020 

   

Term deposits held with banks 185,287,746 53,636,986 

Premiums to be collected 201,632 9,437,946 

Depreciation adjustment for uncollected premiums (179,925) (177,063) 

   

Balance as at 31 December 185,309,453 62,897,869 

 

The fair value of these financial assets is their accounting value, taking into consideration that their maturity is less than 1 

year. 

 

15. OTHER ASSETS 

 

31 December 

 2021 

31 December 

 2020 

   

Receivables from recoveries and salvages 14,882,019 16,902,140 

Depreciation adjustment for recoveries and salvages (14,648,030) (4,387,623) 

Tax in advance Italy 7,971,854 996,489 

Receivables from reinsurance 459,078  

Different debtors 100,559 114,629 

Depreciation adjustment for various debtors (100,559) (100,559) 

Prepayments 131,061 646,396 

Other assets 22,798 26,715 

   

Balance as at 31 December 8,818,780 14,198,187 

The fair value of these financial assets is approximated to the accounting amount, taking into consideration that their 

maturity is less than 1 year. 
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15. OTHER ASSETS (CONT.) 

 

Movement of the depreciation adjustment 

 

Uncollected 

premiums 

Receivables 

from recoveries 

and salvages 
Different 

debtors 

    

Balance as at 1 January 2020 173,786 6,449,231 100,559 

Income/Liabilities during the year 3,277 (2,061,608)      - 

    

Balance as at 31 December 2020 177,063 4,387,623 100,559 

    

Balance as at 1 January 2021 177,063 4,387,623 100,559 

Income/Liabilities during the year 2,862 10,260,407      - 

    

Balance as at 31 December  179,925 14,648,030 100,559 

 

 

 

16.          CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

 

31 December 

 2021 

31 December 

 2020 

   

Short term deposits held with banks 4,000,788 - 

Current accounts held with banks 52,393,021 141,451,968 

Petty cash  12,285 9,826 

   

Balance as at 31 December 56,406,094 141,461,794 

   

 

17. SHARE CAPITAL 

 

31 December 

 2021 

31 December 

 2020 

   

Share capital 50,000,000 50,000,000 

Retreatment hyperinflation IAS 29 (139,384) (139,384) 

   

Balance as at 31 December 49,860,616 49,860,616 

 

 

  

Shareholders’ structure 

 

 

31 December 

 2021 

31 December 

 2020 

   

Egadi Company SRL 90.00% 90.00% 

Simone Lentini 10.00% 10.00% 

   

 100.00% 100.00% 
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18. TECHNICAL RESERVES 

 31 December 

 2021 

31 December 

 2020 

   

Unearned premium reserve 122,683,544 115,221,912 

Reported but not settled loss reserve - 12,417,218 

Incurred but not reported claims reserve 9,944,388 2,756,284 

Unexpired risks reserve 10,265,652 6,856,416 

   

   

Balance as at 31 December 142,893,584 137,251,830 

 

Unearned premium reserve structure per insurance products: 

 

 31 December 

 2021 

31 December 

 2020 

   

Performance Bonds 120,134,197 111,322,024 

Bid Bonds 778,997 641,351 

Advance Payment Bonds 912,682 1,596,231 

Maintenance Bonds 749,232 1,583,985 

Money Retention Bonds 108,436 78,321 

Balance as at 31 December 122,683,544 115,221,912 

 

 

Reported but not settled loss reserve structure per insurance products: 

 

 31 December 

 2021 

31 December 

 2020 

   

Performance Bonds - 12,417,218 

Bid Bonds - - 

Advance Payment Bonds - - 

Maintenance Bonds - - 

Money Retention Bonds      -      - 

   

Balance as at 31 December - 12,417,218 

 

The company considers that the Incurred but not reported claims reserve registered as at 31 December 2021 is sufficient 

to cover the payments for claims that occurred but they were not yet notified up to this date. 

The company calculated the Incurred but not reported claims reserve using the „expected loss ratio” method, taking into 

account the paid indemnities and the gross written premiums both estimated in the next year’s Annual Business Plan, 

resulting in a reserve of 9,944,388 lei as at 31 December 2021 compared to a reserve of 2,756,284 lei as at 31 December 

2020.  
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18. TECHNICAL RESERVES (CONT.) 

 

Movements of the technical reserves values  

 

(a) a) Unearned premiums reserve  
 Gross 
 

 
At the beginning of the year 2020 54,188,541 

Gross premium reserve increase during the year (gross written premiums in 2019)  

115,221,912 

Gross premiums reserve decreasing the during the year (premiums written in previous years, but 

earned in 2019) 

(54,188,541) 

Year end 2020 115,221,912 
  

At the beginning of the year 2021 115,221,912 

Gross premium reserve increase during the year (gross written premiums in 2020)  

122,683,544 

Gross premiums reserve decreasing the during the year (premiums written in previous years, but 

earned in 2020) 

(115,221,912) 

Year end 2021 122,683,544 

 

 

(b) b) Reported but not settled loss reserve (RBNS) and Incurred but 

not reported claims reserve (IBNR)  
 Gross 
  

At the beginning of the year 2020 6,050,046 

Increase during the year 12,013,455 

Decrease during the year 2,890,000 

Year end 2020 15,173,502 
 

 
At the beginning of the year 2021 15,173,502 

Increase during the year 7,188,104 

Decrease during the year 12,417,218 

Year end 2021 9,944,388 

 

 

19. DEBTS ASSOCIATED TO INSURANCE CONTRACTS 

  
31 December 

 2021 

31 December 

 2020  
  

Payables to intermediaries 3,384 1,208,177 

Insurance premiums collected in advance 237,821 208,046 

Insurance premiums to be allocated 145 218,209 

Insurance parties’ cash collateral 93,530,103 95,464,916 

   

Balance as at 31 December   93,771,453 97,099,348 
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20. COMMERCIAL DEBTS AND OTHER DEBTS  
31 December 

 2021 

31 December 

 2020 

   

Salaries and contributions 4,359,248 6,331,294 

Other taxes 156,571 295,147 

EU insurance activity tax 106,594 2,132,287 

Profit tax 597,922 156,954 

Operational leasing debts 2,185,910 1,366,597 

Other debts 212,710 498,330 

   

Balance as at 31 December 

  

7,618,955 10,780,609 

   

21. DEFERRED INCOME TAX RECEIVABLES 

 

31 December 

 2021 

31 December 

 2020 

   

Exchange rate differences unearned premiums reserves and deferred 

acquisition expenses 
88,690 42,361 

Interest income by the effective interest method (266) (1,346) 

Non-deductible impairment adjustments (365,701) (746,439) 

Operational leasing (9,810) (14,074) 

Deferred income tax receivable (287,087) (719,498) 

 

 

 

Result 

account  

2021 

Other 

reserves 

2021 

Result 

account 

2020 

Other 

reserves 

2020 

Exchange rate differences unearned premiums 

reserves and deferred acquisition expenses 
46,329 - (59,336) - 

Interest income by the effective interest method 1,080 - (1,662) - 

Provisions for non-deductible impairment 380,738 - 313,244 - 

Fair value of treasury bonds held for sale - - - - 

Rome secondary headquarters expenses -      - -      - 

Operational leasing 4,264 - (13,578) - 

Deferred income tax expense / income 
432,411      - 238,668      - 

 

 2021 2020 

   

Balance as at 1 January (719,498) (958,166) 

Movements in the profit and loss account 432,411 238,668 

Movements in other reserves      -      - 

Balance as at 31 December (287,087) (719,498) 
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22. TRANZACTII CU PARTI AFILIATE 

 

During 2021, the company carried out transactions with affiliated parties, respectively Egadi Company SRL, based on a 

contract for subleasing of an office space, achieving a rental income of 2,400 lei, the same as in 2020. 

 

 

23. CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

a) Legal actions in court 

 

The company is involved in several disputes arising from its insurance activity, and their settlement is considered not to 

have a significant impact on the outcome of operations or financial position. 

 

b) Taxation 

 

The tax system in Romania, with a low degree of predictability, can be modified without prior public consultation. In case 

of differences of interpretation of the tax legislation, the tax authorities may treat certain aspects differently. In Romania, 

the fiscal year remains at disposal for fiscal verification for 5 years. The company's management considers that the fiscal 

obligations included in these financial statements are correctly calculated. 

 

 

24. RECONCILIATION OF THE RESULT FOR THE YEAR BETWEEN THE STATUTORY 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND THE IFRS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

31 December 

 2021 

31 December 

 2020 

The result of the year according to the statutory financial statements 58,064,214 36,887,255 

Adjustments for   

  - reversal of the premium reserve re-evaluation at year closing exchange 

rate 338,180 (416,227) 

  -  reversal of the re-evaluation of acquisition costs carried forward   at 

year closing exchange rate (48,627) 45,373 

  -  reversal of the equalization reserve - - 

  - interest income by the method of the effective interest rate applied to 

bonds - - 

  - incomes from investments 6,751 (10,385) 

  - recognition of intangible asset for the right to use of rented assets (IFRS 

16) 26,646 (62,661) 

  - reclassification of Rome branch expenses as expenses in advance  - - 

  - deferred income tax (432,411) (238,668) 

Result of the year according to IFRS 57,954,753 36,204,687 

  - adjustment for the fair value of available-for-sale assets, net of tax 

- - 

Total result for the year 57,954,753 36,204,687 
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25. EQUITY RECONCILIATION BETWEEN STATUTORY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND IFRS 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 

31 December 

 2021 

31 December 

 2020 

   

Equity as per statutory financial statements 173,157,583 115,093,369 

   

  - reversal of the premium reserve re-evaluation at year closing exchange 

rate 
661,892 323,713 

  -  reversal of the re-evaluation of acquisition expenses carried forward   at 

year closing exchange rate 
(107,584) (58,957) 

  -  reversal of the equalization reserve - - 

  - interest income by the method of the effective interest rate applied to 

bonds 
- - 

  - incomes from investments (1,660) (8,411) 

  - recognition of intangible asset for the right to use of rented assets (IFRS 

16) 
(61,315) (87,963) 

  - reclassification of Rome branch expenses as expenses in advance  - - 

  - deferred income tax 287,087 719,498 

   

Equity as per IFRS 173,936,003 115,981,249 

 

 

 

 

26.   EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION DATE  

 

Armed conflict between Russia and Ukraine 

 

Following the end of the financial year, in February 2022, an armed conflict has started between Russia and Ukraine, which 

has affected the two countries’ economies and among other things, resulted in a significant influx of refugees from Ukraine 

to neighborhood countries (including Romania) as well as a series of sanctions imposed by the international community 

on Russia and some of Russian origin companies. The medium and long-term impact of this conflict and of the sanctions 

imposed on Russia cannot be anticipated with sufficient accuracy at this time.  

Given that the company does not have activities significantly dependent on the conflict area or affected by sanctions 

(especially Russia, Ukraine, Belarus), neither in terms of acquisitions nor sales, we consider that the company's ability to 

continue its activity in the predictable future shall not be significantly affected, therefore these financial statements are not 

affected by this event subsequent to balance sheet date. 
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